
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE
GREEN TEAM COMMITTEE MEETING

TUESDAY, June 9, 2020, 2:00 PM
TO BE HELD REMOTELY VIA GOOGLE HANGOUTS:

https://meet.google.com/ggx-xjyz-uym
PLEASE NOTE: THIS IS A REVISED MEETING ID - see below for login information

AGENDA

Agenda Item TOD Time Requested Presenter Type Title

1 14:00:00 Jett Call to order / Reminder of Meeting Protocol

2 14:00:00 ::5 Jett Public Comment Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items

3 14:05:00 ::5 Jett Action Approval of the May 12, 2020, 2020 Green Team Committee Meeting Minutes

4 14:10:00 ::5 Jett Action Creation of a temporary secretary position

5 14:15:00 ::5 Jett Action Joint meeting with the Ecology Commission in July

6 14:20:00 ::5 Jett Action 2020 April – June: 2nd Quarter Green Team Quarterly Report. Present in JULY

7 14:25:00 ::10 Greenspan Informational State and Western Slope Recycling Committees Updates

8 14:35:00 ::5 Jett Informational Request/Reminder to sign up for Farm to Community Shifts

9 14:40:00 ::5 Proteau Informational Meadows Beaver Update

10 14:45:00 ::5 Johansson Informational Planet Over Plastics Subcommittee Update

11 14:50:00 ::5 Follen Informational Town Clean Up Subcommittee Update

12 14:55:00 ::5 Berry Informational Composting Subcommittee Update

13 15:00:00 ::20 Jett / Greenspan Work Session COVID-19 Workplan / Zero Waste Plan Integration

14 15:20:00 ::5 Jett Informational

Items for Consideration:
A. Snowmelt options for Chondola walkways
B. San Miguel Watershed Coalition Update
C. Beaver Issue
D. Finn Kjome to speak about Mountain Village water
E. Adopt a Highway
F. 2020 January – March: 1st Quarter Green Team Quarterly Report. Present in APRIL
G. 2020 April – June: 2nd Quarter Green Team Quarterly Report. Present in JULY
H. 2020 July – Sept: 3rd Quarter Green Team Quarterly Report.Present in OCT
I. 2020 Oct – Dec: 4th Quarter Green Team Quarterly Report. Present in JAN
J. Ordinance and Initiative Timeline

15 15:25:00 ::5 Jett Informational Other Business

16 15:30:00 ::5 Jett Adjourn

Join with Google Meet
meet.google.com/ggx-xjyz-uym

Join by phone
+1 650-560-4001 PIN: 730 784 464#



TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 
MINUTES OF THE MAY 12, 2020 
GREEN TEAM MEETING DRAFT 

 
 
 

The meeting of the Green Team Committee was called to order by Cath Jett on Tuesday, May 12, 2020 at 
2:03 p.m. via Zoom. 

Zoom Attendance: 

The following Green Team Committee members were present: 

Cath Jett, Chair and Mountain Village Resident 
Jonathan Greenspan, Vice Chair and Mountain Village Resident  
Patrick Berry, Mountain Village Town Council 
Mike Follen, At Large Member  
Marti Prohaska, Mountain Village Town Council 
Heidi Stenhammer, Telluride Mountain Village Owner’s Association 
Inga Johansson, Alternate Seat 
 

The following were absent: 

Jeff Proteau, Telluride Ski and Golf Company 
 

The following were also in attendance: 

Zoe Dohnal, Business Development & Sustainability Sr. Manager (Staff) 
Christina Lambert, Senior Deputy Town Clerk (Staff) 
Kim Holstrom, San Miguel County Commissioner  
Kim Wheels, Eco Action Partners 
Tyler Simmons, Eco Action Partners 
Julia Ferguson, Lotus Engineering 
Rachel Meier, Lotus Engineering 
 

Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items: 

No public comment was received. 

Consideration of Approval of Minutes: 

Agenda Item 3- April 21, 2020 Green Team Committee Meeting Minutes 

On a MOTION by Patrick Berry and seconded by Inga Johanson, the Green Team Committee voted 
unanimously to approve the April 21, 2020 meeting minutes as presented. Cath asked that we update 
the minutes to say she was expecting an email instead of saying she received an email. It was noted 



that Patrick Berry had to leave early, so he only had partial attendance and to include that in the April 
minutes. 

 

Discussion and Committee Follow Up/Next Steps: 

� Agenda Item 4- GHG Reduction Strategies Feedback Review: 
 
● NEXT STEPS: Julia Ferguson from Lotus Engineering presented this item to the 

committee and discussion took place.  
● Introductions took place. 
● She shared her screen and provided a presentation via Zoom. 
● Lotus shared the results of the Mountain Village Greenhouse Gas Inventory and 

Business-as-Usual emission projections. 
● Lotus reviewed feedback and finalized the list of relevant greenhouse gas reduction 

strategies for Mountain Village. 
● Lotus identified the community values and co-benefits of climate action that should be 

enhanced through the strategies in the climate action plan. 
● Lotus went over feedback and support from the information gathered from the Green 

Team Committee responses. 
● Lotus discussed renewable energy strategies, building strategies, transportation 

strategies and waste strategies. 
● Community values were also discussed. 
● Lotus went over next steps which include: Lotus will send out meeting minutes from 

this conversation in the next week. Lotus will model the impact of the final GHG 
reduction strategies. Lotus will share the results of the model with the Green Team 
Committee. Lotus will finalize the climate action plan for the community.  

● Lotus will look to meet with the group again in June 2020.  
● Rachel Meier took notes on behalf of Lotus and she will email them to the committee. 

 
� Agenda Item 5- How Reduction Strategies Align with Community Value: 

 
● NEXT STEPS: Julia Ferguson from Lotus Engineering presented this item to the 

committee and discussion took place.  
● She shared her screen and provided a presentation via Zoom. 
● Agenda Item 4 and 5 were present together. See above.  

 
� Agenda Item 6- Common Consumption Area Cup Discussion: 

 
● NEXT STEPS: Jonathan Greenspan presented this item to the committee and discussion 

took place.  
● Heidi, Inga and Jonathan had a meeting.  



● In the future we are looking to use a reusable cup at some point but for now it’s a 
compostable cup. We are considering a compostable sticker. 

● Jonathan spoke with Robin Eaton, the Town Clerk in Wheat Ridge, Colorado and he was 
very helpful.  

● There are 10,000 cups leftover from last year so this stock will need to be used first.  
� Agenda Item 7- CC4CA COVID-19 and Climate Discussion: 

 
● NEXT STEPS: Cath Jett presented this item to the committee and discussion took place.  
● Worst case senecios were discussed related to the budget. 
● We should expect at least a 50% cut in our budget.  
● The committee discussed the importance of the group stepping up as a volunteer 

committee and relying less on staff. 
● Staff will still try to support the committee as best they can.  
● Staff is having to do more with less.  
● Zoe is still committed on working with Lotus on the Green House Gas Emissions and 

Reporting. 
● The farm to community program is staying and we will need Green Team Committee 

volunteers in the future.  
● COVID-19 Work plan work session will be included on the June agenda. 
● Cath will start the COVID-19 work plan in the Google drive and the committee can 

continue to work on this. 
● We need to make sure that people know the Green Team Committee is still here and 

here to help! 
 

� Agenda Item 10- Items for Consideration: 
 
▪ Snowmelt options for Chondola walkways 
▪ San Miguel Watershed Coalition Update 
▪ Beaver Issue 
▪ Finn Kjome to speak to the committee about Mountain Village water 
▪ Adopt a Highway 
▪ 2020 April – June: 2nd Quarter Green Team Quarterly Report. Present to Council in JULY 
▪ 2020 July – Sept: 3rd Quarter Green Team Quarterly Report. Present to Council in OCT 
▪ 2020 Oct – Dec: 4th Quarter Green Team Quarterly Report. Present to Council in JAN 
▪ 2021 Jan – Mar: 1st Quarter Green Team Quarterly Report. Present to Council in APRIL  

Other Business: 
 
Agenda Item 9-  
 
The Green Team Committee 2nd Quarter report needs to be created and approved at the July Town Council 
Meeting. 
 



Jonathan Greenspan updated the committee on the current status of the state bills related to the COVID-19 
situation. He stated that the lack of state funding is negatively affecting these bills. The single use plastics 
bill is still currently alive.  
 
Kris Holstrom spoke and said that she was asked to look around for county land for potential 3XM Green 
Waste. She is still pursuing this and will keep us updated.  
There being no further business, on a MOTION by Jonathan Greenspan and seconded by Inga Johanson, the 
Green Team Committee voted unanimously to adjourn the meeting at 3:50 p.m. 

 
Reminder: 

 
The next Green Team Committee meeting will take place on Tuesday, June 9, 2020 at 2:00 p.m. via Google 
Hangouts. 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Christina Lambert 
 
Senior Deputy Town Clerk 
Town of Mountain Village 



 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM #4  

 
DATE: June 9, 2020 
 
TO: Green Team Members 
 
FROM: Cath Jett, Chair 
 
SUBJECT: TEMPORARY SECRETARY POSITION 
 
 
At their May 14th meeting, the Town Council agreed to reorganize staff and eliminate support 
for the Green Team until such a time that normal staffing levels can be returned to normal.  
 
The Green Team discussed this possibility at their May 12th meeting, so this was not completely 
unexpected.  
 
However, this has left a gap in a quasi-secretarial position that has been filled by staff in the past. 
Our Bylaws do not have a secretary as an official executive position, so the bylaws would not 
have to be amended. The secretary would be one of the team members who would take action 
minutes  and return them to the chair and vice chair to be added to the next meeting packet. 1

 
Heidi Stenhammer has generously offered to do this for the Green Team during this unusual 
time. 
 
 
 
 
 

1 See sample of previous minutes for specific formatting 

 



 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM #5  

 
DATE: June 9, 2020 
 
TO: Green Team Members 
 
FROM: Cath Jett, Chair 
 
SUBJECT: JOINT MEETING WITH THE ECOLOGY COMMISSION 
 
 
One of the goals of the Green Team was to meet jointly with the Telluride Ecology Commission. 
Initially, we were hoping to meet in March or April. 
 
After a discussion with the Ecology Commission Chair, they have offered a date of July 1st at 
4:00 pm. The focus is to determine which programs both towns are working on and see where we 
can share resources and messaging. 
 
We will need to determine if this date will work for the majority of the team 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM #6  

 
DATE: June 9, 2020 
 
TO: Green Team Members 
 
FROM: Cath Jett, Chair 
 
SUBJECT: 2nd QUARTER REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL 
 
 
I have created a 2nd Quarter report. Most of the updates to the report will happen during this 
month’s meeting. Please review and make comments prior to the meeting so that we can discuss 
and finalize it. 
 
In addition, should we look at considering when we review quarterly reports? Right now, they 
need to be sent to the Town Clerk about 10 days before the regularly scheduled Town Council 
meeting. We are right on the borderline of that timeline. If we moved approval to the month that 
we are presenting, it would mean a quick turnaround to the Town Clerk, but the information 
would be more current. 
 
Thoughts? 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
Mountain Village Green Team  

2nd Quarter Report 

The Goal for the Team is to work the following items to completion.  

1. Community and Government Greenhouse Gas Report and Climate Action Plan 

We had a great meeting with Lotus Engineering in May.  Prior to the meeting, they presented the 
team with a survey on strategy prioritization. An interesting discussion took place and they were 
able to flesh out details for the team to begin creating a Green House Gas Reduction program. 

Because staff support was cut after our May meeting, the Chair and Vice-Chair shall be copied on all 
communication with Lotus Engineering. This will be shared with the entire Green Team to develop 
additional strategies. 

This program was paid for with 2019 funds and work will continue. 

Lotus will present the Climate Action Plan at the July Green Team meeting. 

2. Regional Greenhouse Gas Report and Programs 

EcoAction Partners worked with Staff and Lotus Engineering to coordinate existing data. This will 
help develop the Climate Action Plan (mentioned above). 

3. Mountain Village Clean-Up Day 

We are planning on having a no-cost, socially distanced event. We would also like to coordinate with 
the Town and TSG to plan for a common day next year.  

All Council and staff members are invited to participate in future meetings and to be 
part of the event. 

The date for this year’s event is August 22nd  



4. Composting Program 

16 units have been ordered and 5 have arrived and are reporting data. COVID-19 delayed the 
shipment of several units. All data tracking, problem-solving, and training are being managed by 
Jonathan Greenspan. 

We are also looking to set up an email chain/phone tree for questions or issues that users may have. 

X pounds have been diverted from the waste stream as of Y date. 

5. Voluntary Single-Use Plastics Resolution Implementation and Education 

We are working with County and Grace Franklin looking at a new policy of reductions of single-use 
plastics during COVID-19.  

We are also working with TVMOA to change from single-use cups to compostable cups for the 
Common Consumption Area. Their attorney has given us some options on how to maneuver through 
state law. 

Volunteers are in a holding pattern until further state and local policy changes regarding COVID-19. 

Planning is still happening. 

6. Meetings with Telluride’s Ecology Commission 

Our first planned meeting for March was postponed because of the virus. Our focus will be to flesh 
out common programs between the towns and bringing them into the budget process. 

The next joint meeting is tentatively planned for July 1st at 4:00 pm. 

7. Green Tips 

We have received Green Tips from members of the committee through June. Green Tips are posted 
on the Town’s website as well as in communication with residents. We have also created a Mountain 
Village Green Team social media presence and allow members to post tips as they become available. 

Links for Social Media 

8. Farm to Community Program 

We are in the process of finalizing volunteers for the program. Please remember to sign up for a time 
slot.  

9. Green Team Dues and Fees 

CC4CA membership dues have been paid for 2020. 
The Team is considering other no-cost memberships that would benefit the Town. 

The Team feels that it is important to offer letters of support for CC4CA bills. Requests 
for additional letters will go through Patrick if bills are not on CC4CA’s current lobbying 
list
 



 

10. REMP Funds Allocation 

We will continue to recommend to Council any changes or updates that need to happen. 

11. Solar Rebate Initiative 

The program needs to be revamped, reorganized, and promoted in preparation for 2021. 

12. Meadows Beaver Solutions 

There is concern about the proposed beaver solutions by Town Staff in their quarterly report to 
Town Council. There has been discussion with TSG, members of the Green Team, and Town to come 
up with an alternate solution to removing the dam. Some of the concerns from residents are the 
mudflats that will be left after the destruction of the dam and how that can be mitigated. There is also 
concern that if the dam were eradicated, even more trees would be taken down in the neighborhood. 
There is also concern regarding the habitat that is currently supported including birds like Canada 
Geese, Eagles, Red Wing Blackbirds, Mallard Ducks, etc. 

There is concern that the remaining mudflats will be an eyesore for the residents. This is similar 
to the Boulevard Trail wall that had to be rebuilt by Town Staff. 

Items for consideration 

● Prepare and discuss ideas for the Environment and Sustainability of the Mountain 
Village Master Plan. 

● Review and discuss Mountain Village’s efforts to carbon neutrality. 
● Zero Waste Initiatives updates regarding regional approaches to reduce, repurpose, 

reuse, and recycle specific waste streams to increase landfill diversion. 
● Regional and local composting efforts and measurables on the carbon footprint. 
● Quantitative data on recycling and waste for service contracts. 
● Eliminate the use of most newsprint and be paperless. 
● Help staff find alternative mechanized equipment that is less polluting and more 

efficient Such as vehicles, landscape equipment, and other related items. 
● Review franchise fees with SMPA and Black Hills to offset green energy projects. 
● Create a credit for large hotels that create energy systems that reduce their carbon 

footprint 
● Update building codes to 2018. Draft created by staff prior to departure  

 



Planet Over Plastics Update  

1. Current outreach  

a) Survey completion 

Need to define when to restart of if need is there 

b) Training toolkit for businesses and collateral 

Defining what to include and when  

c) Farmer’s Market outreach 

Needing volunteers 

Goals: Expand knowledge of initiative and expand volunteer network 

d) Summer concert series partnership no longer option  

 

e)  Shift to reusables 

 

 

2. Future shift 
a) Continue with same phased outreach or shift gears towards ban?? 
b) Marketing 
c) Networking and partnerships 

Environmental consulting groups‐ approval to move in that direction 
d) Need for outreach summer ideas 
e) Expanding volunteer network 
f) Collaboration with Town of Telluride 
g) Getting businesses on board‐ Telski‐ Distillery‐ showcasing 

a.  Need to expand and reach more people 
 
 

 Expanding Partnerships  
i. Collaboration with Inland Ocean Coalition and Surfrider for resources and 

training, Rethink Disposable, Upstream 

 

Achievements, Setbacks, Moving forward 

 

 



 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM #13 

 
DATE: June 9, 2020 
 
TO: Green Team 
 
FROM: Cath Jett 
 
SUBJECT: COVID-19 Workplan / 2008 Zero Waste Plan 
 
 
At our May meeting, we discussed the possibility that we could lose staff and financial support 
because of the COVID-19 situation. The team agreed to continue on in a volunteer capacity with 
much more emphasis on actually doing the work instead of having staff do this. 
 
We also agreed to look at the current work plan and see how it could be modified with a focus on 
“how we will operate on the other side” of COVID. 
 
I have taken the original work plan and tweaked it, but still, need input from each of you. This 
will be the majority of our work at the June 9th meeting, but we only have about 20 minutes. 
Please take the time to review, comment, add, doodle - whatever! - before Tuesday’s meeting. 
 
In addition, please review Section 4.1 of the Zero Waste Plan that was developed for the 
community in 2008. Are there any actions that we can implement or complement the projects we 
are currently doing. 
 
 

 



 

 
COVID-19 Work Plan 

Brainstorming 
 
FOCUS: How do we continue doing what we need to do without funding and/or staff support? Are we in crisis budget 
mode or not? This assumes that we are 
 
REMINDER: 

● Why was the Green Team created? Because the Council was concerned that Green Behaviors would not 
continue “on their own” without input from the group that was made of Council, Staff, and Community members. 

● Utilize the messages from CC4CA, Recycle Colorado, and other organizations 
● Initially, we wanted three key projects. Do we need to go back to that? 

 
GOAL:  

● Rethink each project 
● Postpone projects that require staff support or funding 
● Add new projects that don’t require staff support or funding 
● Report directly to Council to make sure that projects are being implemented 
● Adjust the schedule to ensure that the work plan is adopted in December for implementation in January.  
● Adjust the quarterly report GT approval process to ensure that the report is provided to Town Council in the month 

ending the quarter. I.e., 1st quarter report presented in March, 2nd in June, etc. Ensure that the actual 
presentation to Town Council focuses on key points of the quarterly report. 

 
COMMUNICATION and PROCEDURAL STRATEGIES: 

● Create Green Team Social Media Accounts 
● PSAs from KOTO and Print media? 
● Abandon Zoom meetings and use Google Hangouts? 
● Timeline for requesting agenda items, posting agenda, posting packets. 
● Who will take minutes? 

 
CURRENT PROJECTS: 
 

1. Community and Government greenhouse gas report and climate action plan. 
a. STATUS: To Continue with Lotus - the program has been paid for with 2019 funds 
b. Connect with Julia - what data does she need? 
c. Create Google Form so that staff can input directly data needed to Julia. We will send reminders as 

needed 
d. Which GT member will be the point person on this project? 
e. The Town Waste and Recycle volume is currently being handled by Public Works 

https://drive.google.com/open?id=1Ro67vozqfe4L5v4wfkio3QqjCo2MaiNJ


 
i. Some notes from their current report, “education about recycling contamination needs to happen. 

Current contamination has increased by almost 3%”. 
 

Budget Allocation: Services paid in 2019 

Time Frame Action Item Team 
Member(s) 

Time 
Spent 

Date 
Completed 

January – March ● Develop a 2019 community-wide GHG 
emission inventory 

● Develop a 2019 government-wide GHG 
emission inventory 

● Develop an inventory management 
plan for staff 

TMV Staff and 
Lotus Eng. 

  

April-May ● Create GHG emissions reduction 
targets in line with CC4CA, Mountain 
Village Zero Waste Plan, and State 
HOUSE BILL 19-1261 

● Develop a business-as-usual GHG 
emissions forecast 

Lotus Should be 
working on this 
after meeting 
with them in 
April 

  

May-July ● Develop a Climate Action Plan 
● Should we add 2008 Zero Waste Action 

Plan items and develop timelines? 

   

September – 
December 

● Evaluate outcomes and plan for 2021    

 
2. Regional greenhouse gas report and programs 

Budget Allocation: $19,935 Crisis Budget: $10,761 (exhausted) 
 

a. STATUS: Still funded for EAP? If not, what do we need to continue to monitor for EAP when they are 
brought back into the fold. 

i. Cath - reach out to Kim Wheels 
 

Time Frame Action Item Team 
Member(s) 

Time 
Spent 

Date 
Completed 

January - December ● Green Team & Staff meetings to 
support the items below: preparation 
of items, participation, and followup 

○ Special GHG Project 
Calculations & Consulting 
(specific possible items listed 
below based on 2018 requests, 
~10 hours each) 

■  Update Gondola GHG 
offset calculation 

■ Farm to Table 
Program: calculate 
GHG emissions savings 

● MV Waste contract data: Analyze & 
utilize annually collected data 

● Develop a 2019 region-wide GHG 
emission inventory 

TMV Staff and 
EAP 

  

https://leg.colorado.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2019A/bills/2019a_1261_rr2.pdf
https://leg.colorado.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2019A/bills/2019a_1261_rr2.pdf
https://leg.colorado.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2019A/bills/2019a_1261_rr2.pdf
https://leg.colorado.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2019A/bills/2019a_1261_rr2.pdf


 
● Regional GHG data sharing on EcoAP 

website 
● Regional Energy & Waste Resource 

Organization Services 
○ Regional Energy & Waste 

Resource Organization for 
Governments & Community, 
including: 

■ Website with 
resources for the 
community (including 
links to MV programs) 

■ Monthly email 
newsletters 

■ Telephone & in-person 
support for 
community members 
on energy efficiency & 
renewable energy 
resources & financial 
incenTIves (including 
SMPA, Black Hills, 
state & federal tax 
programs, C-PACE, & 
Mountain Village 
programs) 

■ Recycling outreach 
information for region 

■ Participation in & 
sharing of information 
from related regional 
events, forums, and 
meetings 

● Sneffels Energy Board - coordination of 
meetings, notes, communication 

○ Establishing Goals & Action 
Plan beyond 2020 

○ Regional government elected 
official & staff representaTIon, 
SMPA staff, & others 
collaboraTIng regionally on 
GHG emissions reduction 
efforts 

○ Sharing of statewide 
collaboration & resources to 
assist with local / regional 
initiatives & projects 

○ CDPHE Pollution Prevention 
Advisory Board Assistance 
Committee participation, 
which advises on directing 



 
○ RREO grant & rebate funding 

for the state. ParAcipaAon 
brings the numerous grant and 
funding opportuniTIes and 
waste reducTIon strategies to 
our region through the 
Sneffels Energy Board. 

● Green Business Certification Program 
○ engaging businesses in 

reducing energy use & GHG 
emissions 

○  financial incentive support for 
energy efficiency & renewable 
energy actions 

○ engaging property 
management companies in 
reducing GHG emissions 

● Plastic Film Recycling Program for #4 
Plastics - MV location(s), outreach, 
tracking, coordinaTIon, pickup, etc. 

 
3. Mountain Village Clean-Up Day Program Crisis Budget: $0.00 

a. Staff already has started looking at what they can do out in the field to keep MV beautiful 
i. How can we involve the community to think and act the same way? 

b. Should we do public gathering - BYOB and food? Is BYOB possible? 
c. If we move from Clean Up Day to a lifestyle program, should we abandon weighing or can we do it 

differently? 
d. Should we abandon the idea of “Brand Audit”? 
e. Come up with an outreach plan to reduce and reuse instead of recycling 

i. Think about an item when you purchase it. Can you reuse the container? 
ii. Consider glass over plastic  

1. Start looking at glass crushing to use as fill for various projects. 
 

4. Composting Program Crisis Budget: $11,065 (exhausted) 
a. Jonathan to manage tracking and reporting.  

i. Should reports be monthly? Quarterly? Semi or Annually? 
ii. Create Email/Phone tree to help with any issues that participants have 
iii. Do we have an FAQ/Help Person? Jonathan? Patrick? 
iv. How many units have been distributed - 5 + JG’s personal (6) 

 
5. Voluntary Single-Use Plastics Resolution Falls under Item 6 
6. General Green Team Communication and Education Crisis Budget: $2,000 (exhausted) 
7. Green Tips 

a. Status? Are we up to date on publishing? 
b. Has each team member completed a topic 
c. How can this be added to the Town Website? 
d. Can we utilize Social Media and do it ourselves? 

 
8. Farm to Community 

a. Who is our contact at the Town for this project? 
b. Create volunteer sign up and manage (send out reminders, etc.) 

i. Each Team member should try to work a minimum of “x” shifts 
ii. Solicit each recipient for recipes, favorite items in the share, etc. Socialize! 

9. REMP Funds Allocation 



 
a. Return oversight to Planning Staff 
b. Report to GT on status, changes, etc. (Informational only) 

i. Figure out a way to stay involved and help with shaping the plan 
10. Green Team Dues and Fees 

a. CC4CA - allocated and exhausted 
b. Other groups, that might be free or low cost? 

11. Solar Rebate Initiative 
a. Needs to be revamped for 2021 

 
NEW PROJECTS 
 

1. Ordinance/Initiative History Timeline 
2. Creating a Unified Voice between TMV, TMVOA, and TSG 
3. Zero Waste Plan 

a. Revive and review - what can we do right now? 
b. Coordinate with the Public Health Director to develop guidelines for waste and recycling streams and how 

they relate to public health, safety, and the environment  
 
 

 
 
 
 
WHITEBOARD: 
NOTES TO BE INCORPORATED (This is just random stuff that has been going through my brain or ideas sent to me) 

● General: How to message what we are doing? 
● Who will manage GHG without staff? Develop protocol and communication with staff that is measuring data 

○ Need to connect with Julia about where we are in the process 
● Compost team - JG to manage data tracking and reporting 
● Compost team - create email/phone tree for communication/outreach/help 
● Compost team - who is the FAQ/Help person? 
● Timeline of ordinances/initiatives - Cath to work on. Roadmap of where we came and where we are headed 
● REDUCE & REUSE instead of recycling now that carriers aren’t 
● Zero waste focus...we’ve got less than 5 years to accomplish goals. Bring this program back into focus 
● How can we unify all entities - TSG, TMV, TMVOA? We need a cohesive singular front 
● Water conservation plan, education, communication (maybe similar to ToT?) 
● Farm to Community: Manage volunteer spreadsheet and communication? Make sure that PPE are available 
● Farm to Community: Solicit each participant for recipes or what their favorite foods are and recipes that use those 

foods. 
● Beaver education - wtf is the Coreten doing under the culvert? Looks butt ugly… 
● Where do we stand with beetle kill and remediation?  

. 
 
 



 

Zero Waste 
Action Plan 

For Mountain Village, Telluride 
and San Miguel County, CO  

 
 

August 8, 2008 
Prepared by Gary Liss & Associates 

4395 Gold Trail Way, Loomis, CA  95650-8929 
916-652-7850; gary@garyliss.com, www.garyliss.com

mailto:gary@garyliss.com
http://www.garyliss.com/


Table of Contents 
Page 

 

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY............................................................................................................... 1 

2 EXISTING SERVICES .................................................................................................................... 3 

2.1 BACKGROUND ............................................................................................................................. 3 
2.2 SERVICE OPPORTUNITY ANALYSIS ............................................................................................. 5 
2.3 REUSE SERVICES ......................................................................................................................... 5 
2.4 RECYCLING SERVICES................................................................................................................. 5 
2.5 COMPOSTING SERVICES .............................................................................................................. 7 
2.6 SOLID WASTE SERVICES ............................................................................................................. 8 
2.7 SPECIAL WASTES AND HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTES ..................................................... 10 

3 SERVICE OPPORTUNITIES....................................................................................................... 10 

3.1 KNOW YOUR WASTE AND RECYCLABLES ................................................................................ 11 
3.2 COMMODITIES ANALYSIS.......................................................................................................... 12 

4 RECOMMENDED PROGRAMS, FACILITIES AND POLICIES........................................... 15 

4.1 PROGRAMS ................................................................................................................................ 15 
4.1.1 Refuse, Return and Design Out Waste .............................................................................. 15 
4.1.2 Reuse and Repair .............................................................................................................. 16 
4.1.3 Organics............................................................................................................................ 18 
4.1.4 Paper................................................................................................................................. 21 
4.1.5 Construction, Remodeling, Landclearing and Demolition Debris (C&D) ....................... 21 
4.1.6 Other Recyclables ............................................................................................................. 22 
4.1.7 Education and Outreach ................................................................................................... 22 

4.2 FACILITIES................................................................................................................................. 23 
4.2.1 Composting ....................................................................................................................... 23 
4.2.2 C&D Processing ............................................................................................................... 23 
4.2.3 Reuse ................................................................................................................................. 24 
4.2.4 Resource Recovery Park ................................................................................................... 25 
4.2.5 Transfer Stations ............................................................................................................... 26 
4.2.6 Landfills as a Last Resort.................................................................................................. 26 

4.3 POLICIES AND INCENTIVES........................................................................................................ 27 
4.3.1 Adoption of Zero Waste Policies....................................................................................... 29 
4.3.2 Policies and Incentives for Waste Generators .................................................................. 29 
4.3.3 Retailer and Producer Responsibility ............................................................................... 30 
4.3.4 Policies and Incentives for Recyclers ............................................................................... 31 
4.3.5 Policy and Incentives for Waste Haulers .......................................................................... 32 

4.4 PROPOSED ZERO WASTE BUDGET ............................................................................................ 33 
4.4.1 Zero Waste Coordinator ................................................................................................... 35 

4.5 IMPLEMENTATION SCHEDULE FOR PRIORITIES......................................................................... 36 



Table of Contents 
Page 

 

APPENDIX A – MODEL ZERO WASTE RESOLUTION................................................................ 38 

APPENDIX B – WASTE DATA FROM COMPARABLE COMMUNITY ..................................... 39 

APPENDIX C – EXCERPTS FROM ICLEI SUSTAINABILITY INVENTORY 2006 
REGARDING WASTE .......................................................................................................................... 45 

 



 

 

 

Acknowledgements 
 
Gary Liss & Associates (GLA) wrote this Plan, with funding provided by the Town of Mountain 
Village and The New Community Coalition.  GLA would like to acknowledge the leadership of 
Kris Holstrom and The New Community Coalition, who recognized the need for this Plan. Kris 
made all the arrangements to engage our firm, showed us all the existing facilities and services 
for solid waste, reuse and recycling in the area, and convened meetings with Town Councils of 
both Telluride and Mountain Village and with the community and stakeholders in the area.  
Through this extensive engagement process in February 2008, GLA obtained the information 
needed to develop this Plan.  In addition, GLA obtained significant information from the San 
Miguel County Sustainability Inventory Prepared by ICLEI (Local Governments for 
Sustainability U.S.A.) in 2006. 
 
Partners for a sustainable future...  
  
The success of this Plan will depend upon effective communication and active engagement with 
each of the stakeholders to harness their interest and energy to turn local solid waste problems 
into solutions about pressing problems such as climate change. 
 
The New Community Coalition is committed to 
identifying, coordinating, and implementing 
sustainability projects in Telluride, Mountain 
Village, and San Miguel County. The Coalition 
recognizes community as the key ingredient in our 
quest for a positive vision of the future. The 
quality of interactions among all members of the 
community — businesses, governments, 
individuals, and organizations — will define the 
region’s ability to adapt to an energy-constrained 
future and the unpredictable nature of global 
climate change. By stimulating interest and 
dialogue in the pressing issues of our time, the 
Coalition hopes to herald a new paradigm of interactions among all members of the community. 
The Coalition envisions community collaborations to increase our energy efficiency, re-localize 
our economy and food sources, develop a greener built environment, reduce our carbon 
footprint, and expand educational resources. For more information, go to:  
http://www.newcommunitycoalition.org/index.html. 
 
 
 

http://www.newcommunitycoalition.org/index.html
Catherine Jett
This has since morphed into Eco Action Partners (EAP)



Mountain Vi l lage,  Tel lur ide and San Miguel  County Zero Waste Act ion Plan 

1 Executive Summary 

In 2007, Telluride, the Town of Mountain Village, and San Miguel County signed an intergovernmental 
agreement to fund a Sustainability Coordinator that would identify, coordinate and implement projects 
and ideas that promote regional sustainability.  As a result, The New Community Coalition (Coalition), a 
501(c)(3) nonprofit, was formed to oversee the Sustainability Coordinator and projects.  A Resource 
Recovery/Recycling Working Group and action plan have since been created with the goal of reducing 
the amount of waste leaving the community, creating new jobs and business opportunities by using 
“wastes” as resources, and managing hazardous wastes in a responsible manner.   
 
One of the Resource Recovery/Recycling Working Group’s first tasks was to create a Zero Waste Action 
Plan for the community.  The Coalition and the Town of Mountain Village hired Gary Liss & Associates 
(GLA), a Zero Waste consultant, to develop this Plan. GLA looked at existing services, garbage rate 
structures, and services needed for expanding reuse, recycling and composting in the region.   
 
After review of the local solid waste, reuse and recycling system, there are a number of services that stand 
out as critical to moving forward with the Zero Waste goal in this region: 
 
♦ Composting - A composting facility is needed to compost all organics, including yard trimmings, 

food scraps and food-soiled paper 
♦ Resource Recovery Park - More efficient recycling operations are needed to process reusables and 

recyclables from the region, including recyclables from construction and demolition debris, ideally in 
a Resource Recovery Park design 

♦ Solid Waste System Redesign - Garbage contracts, rate structures and services provided need to be 
revised to provide incentives to all involved to move to Zero Waste (as detailed above). 

 
To move forward to implement the Zero Waste Plan, the region needs to address these issues as priorities.  
The purchase of a baler and composter for the Sunrise Resource Recovery Park would enable the 
Telluride region to dramatically address two of these key challenges.  This would reduce the region’s 
carbon footprint by not only reducing volumes of waste but by reducing the miles traveled to haul waste 
to the closest landfills in Montrose County.   The third challenge needs to be addressed by leadership 
provided by TNCC, working with staff at the Towns of Telluride and Mountain Village and San Miguel 
County.  This will require someone full-time at TNCC to work on these and outreach and education 
functions identified for TNCC in this Plan.   
 
In March 2008, TNCC and Sunrise LLC jointly applied to the State of Colorado for a grant from the 
Recycling Resources Economic Opportunity Grant Program.  In May 2008, the State notified TNCC and 
Sunrise that they had been awarded the grant.  As a result, a majority of the funding to initially implement 
this Plan has already been arranged by TNCC 
 

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 1 Gary Liss & Associates 
 

Catherine Jett
Can we still do it?

Catherine Jett
This really didn't happen because of the downturn that happened in 2008

Catherine Jett
Has this funding been exhausted?

Jonathan Greenspan
which funding

Catherine Jett
Has since gone out of business



Mountain Vi l lage,  Tel lur ide and San Miguel  County Zero Waste Act ion Plan 

Properly designed avoided collection and disposal costs can become the economic engine that drives the 
system to Zero Waste.  Direct disposal cost savings alone at $50/ton could generate up to $450,000 each 
year for the region to offset expanded costs of Zero Waste initiatives, once those savings are factored into 
economic evaluations. The value of the materials currently disposed is over $330,000 each year1. If each 
of the materials were recovered completely and not thrown away, the benefit to the region would be the 
combination of the value and avoided disposal costs, or close to $780,000 each year.  This represents the 
budget for implementing Zero Waste in the region.   
 
If the region could implement all the programs and policies recommended in this ZWAP for less 
than $780,000 per year, it would be environmentally and economically much more sustainable.   
 
The policies and programs recommended will make it more economic to eliminate, reuse, recycle or 
compost waste, than to dispose of it in landfills.  This ZWAP has sought to find homes for all materials 
generated, with a focus on local solutions.  As some wastes are more challenging to eliminate, reuse, 
recycle, or compost than others; options are proposed to work with the producers of those products and 
packaging for them to assume responsibility for them, or to ban them from sale or disposal in Telluride, 
Mountain Village and San Miguel County. 
 
By adopting policies as recommended, the Towns of Telluride and Mountain Village and San Miguel 
County can help everyone benefit that eliminates and recycles waste, and let those who choose to waste 
pay higher fees for those services.  The local governments can have major impacts in defining what is 
economic, through the policies adopted in Ordinances, contracts, permits, zoning, and rate structures.   
 
This ZWAP also calls upon retailers and producers to assume responsibility to reuse, recycle or compost 
difficult to recycle products and packaging that they sell in the area.  Once the costs of reuse, recycling 
and/or composting are incorporated within the purchase price of the products, this becomes a self-funding 
system, and is one of the most powerful opportunities to move towards Zero Waste. 
 
Businesses also need to know that the City is committed to the goal of Zero Waste before they invest 
substantial resources in their operations.  Therefore, the most critical policy of all is for the Towns and 
County to adopt the Zero Waste goal, and to ask all stakeholders in the community to participate in 
working towards the goal.  This ZWAP proposes that striving for Zero Waste means that The region will 
work strategically and diligently to get to Zero Waste or Darn Close2, by 2025.  This ZWAP proposes the 
adoption of interim goals of 50% diversion of solid waste from landfills and incinerators by 2011 and 
75% diversion by 2018.  These dates were selected to be one year after the Towns of Telluride and 
Mountain Village and San Miguel County implement their next solid waste and recycling contracts.   
 
With vision and commitment, this region could become a leader of sustainability and enhance the region’s 
ability to attract those who value the environment in this way.  

                                                      
1 See Table 1. 
2 Diverting over 90% of the region’s waste from landfills and incinerators compared to the base year in which the 
Plan was adopted. 

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 2 Gary Liss & Associates 
 

Catherine Jett
Yes!

Jonathan Greenspan
slow but gaining

Catherine Jett
Since China is no longer accepting recyclables, is this still a realistic amount? Probably not. What is the current value? Can the GT investigate and come up with new numbers?

Jonathan Greenspan
absolutlet not 0 $

Catherine Jett
Interesting idea! Although, green shaming a bit? TMV is opposed to a stick approach. Would need to turn this into a carrot.

Jonathan Greenspan
new approach is to conbine both concepts otherwise carrots r a circular conversation



Mountain Vi l lage,  Tel lur ide and San Miguel  County Zero Waste Act ion Plan 

2 Existing Services 

2.1 Background 
Established in 1887, Telluride currently is home to approximately 2,200 permanent residents year-round. 
It is one of only 4 towns in Colorado that has been designated a National Historic Landmark District.  The 
Town of Mountain Village was founded one hundred years later (in 1987) and is now home to 
approximately 1,250 permanent residents year-round.  The total population of San Miguel County is 
about 7,500.  However, the area serves about 550,000 visitors year-round. 
 
Telluride sits at the west end of San Miguel County amid the San Juan Mountains and the Uncompahgre 
National Forest on the western-most edge of Colorado and the Rocky Mountains.  Telluride has a 
traditional compact downtown of 50 square blocks of mostly mining-era buildings with a rich history. 
Telluride is in a box canyon that is highlighted by the spectacular 365-foot Bridal Veil Falls, which is 
Colorado's tallest free-falling waterfall.  Telluride is at elevation 8,750 feet and is ringed by 12,000- to 
13,000-foot mountain peaks, which attract tourists for both winter and summer recreation activities. At 
9,078 feet above sea level, the Telluride Regional Airport is the highest commercial airport in North 
America. Ski Magazine rates Telluride in the Top 10 ski resorts in North America3.  
 
Telluride hosts a unique event almost every weekend in the summer, which attract thousands of tourists, 
including: Mountainfilm, Jazz Celebration & Balloon Rally, Bluegrass Festival, Wine Festival, Blue & 
Brews, Telluride Film Festival, Oktoberfest, Talking Gourds Spoken Word Festival, Wild West Fest, 
Mushroom Festival and Tech Fest.  Telluride and Mountain Village host a continuous stream of festivals 
during the summer months.  
 
Mountain Village was developed to resemble a European alpine community 
(like Zermatt), just south of Telluride ski area’s 1,700 acres.  It was first 
developed as a Planned Unit Development in San Miguel County, adjacent to 
Telluride.  It was incorporated as its own Town in 1995.  The Mountain 
Village Core is a pedestrian-friendly area, which is linked to Telluride by the 
only free gondola system in North America serving over 2 million riders per 
year.  The gondola serves as the main transportation vehicle between the 
communities (an easy 12-minute commute between them), and services all the 
ski slopes of both communities.   San Miguel County in Colorado 
 
San Miguel County is 1,287 square miles, extending from the San Juan Mountains in the east to the Utah 
border.   The population of the County was 7,222 in 2004, and is projected to increase to 8,693 by 20104.  
Telluride is the County seat of San Miguel County.  The population is primarily located in the Towns of 
Telluride and Mountain Village.   The County also includes the towns of Ophir, Sawpit and Norwood.  

                                                      
3 Source: http://visittelluride.com/telluride/content/view/149/252/ 
4 Source: http://www.sanmiguelcounty.org/portal/page?_pageid=117,145130&_dad=portal&_schema=PORTAL 

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 3 Gary Liss & Associates 
 



Mountain Vi l lage,  Tel lur ide and San Miguel  County Zero Waste Act ion Plan 

Other communities in the County are Placerville, Egnar and Slickrock. About two-thirds of the lands in 
the County are public federal or state lands.          
  
The population of this area greatly expands during the ski season and summer festivals.  The Telluride 
Tourism Board estimates that about 550,000 tourists a year visit the area (both overnight and day 
visitors).5 Skier visits are expected to reach 450,000 during the 2007/2008 winter season, and summer 
festivals can attract more than 10,000 people per day. 
 
Climate change poses a serious threat to the regional economy as well as to its environment and quality of 
life.  Telluride and Mountain Village are actively working to reduce their carbon footprint and to reverse 
climate change. In the past few years, Telluride has signed on to The Canary Initiative, The U.S. Mayors 
Climate Protection Initiative, and the Rocky Mountain Climate Organizations, and worked with ICLEI 
(Local Governments for Sustainability) to develop a Sustainability Inventory for the region6.   
 
Historically, the economy of the region was primarily based on mining and agriculture. The primary 
economic engines now are recreation and tourism and the associated real estate and construction 
industries. There has been a surge in second home ownership associated with the expansion of the 
Telluride Ski Area and the Mountain Village resort development. In San Miguel County, construction 
jobs comprise seven percent of all jobs, and construction is the top employment sector exceeded only by 
accommodations, food services and government jobs.  
 
Telluride and Mountain Village host a continuous stream of festivals during the summer months, which 
attract thousands of tourists. These festivals, although vital to the resort economy, produce an enormous 
amount of trash and compostable waste. The Town of Telluride, the San Miguel Regional Recycling Task 
Force and TNCC have been working with festivals to require and facilitate recycling and composting. 
The Telluride Bluegrass Festival, attracting over 10,000 attendees a day for 4 days, has been able to 
reduce its trash by 50% as a result of voluntary recycling and compost collection sites staffed by 
volunteers. 
 
The region has many restaurants, boutiques, recreation stores, heritage hotels, bed and breakfasts and full 
service resorts.  Some of the major attractions that draw people to The region include: hiking, mountain 
biking, climbing, golf, canoeing, kayaking, fishing, skiing (cross-country and downhill) and 
snowboarding, along with spectacular mountain views.  
 
Zero Waste could contribute to the region becoming a focus for eco-tourism.  In fact, the Telluride 
Tourism Board has already indicated its support for such an initiative.  One of the driving forces for the 
adoption of Zero Waste in New Zealand was that country’s desire to strengthen tourists’ perception of 
New Zealand as dedicated to maintaining the highest environmental standards.  Increasingly, conference 
organizers are asking potential site locations for future conferences about their Green policies and 
programs.  The region has always attracted those who value the environment in this way and could 

                                                      
5 Email communication from Scott McQuade, Telluride Tourism Board, April 28, 2008. 
6 See Appendix C 

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 4 Gary Liss & Associates 
 

Catherine Jett
When will 2020 census data be available?

Jonathan Greenspan
lags 2-5 years by the budgets get allocated

Catherine Jett
People come here because of our "pristine" environment. We need to be a leader! How can we incorporate this message between TTB, TMV, ToT, TSG?

Jonathan Greenspan
cultural and behavior media and education    live like a local



Mountain Vi l lage,  Tel lur ide and San Miguel  County Zero Waste Act ion Plan 

expand upon that, like the Olympics did when they added “Environmental Stewardship” as a core value in 
organizing the Olympics.  With leadership in Zero Waste and other sustainability initiatives, the region 
could also demonstrate to visitors policies and programs that would be good for them to bring back to 
their own communities to replicate.  This could amplify the region’s impact dramatically in the world. 

2.2 Service Opportunity Analysis 
In a Zero Waste systems approach, one of the first steps is an inventory of the services that are currently 
provided to collect or receive materials generated in the area.  GLA obtained input from The New 
Community Coalition on a Service Opportunity Analysis form, and from other stakeholders and service 
providers through the course of its research.  This analysis identified how average residents or businesses 
would have their products or materials collected, received and/or processed for reuse, repair, recycling 
and composting.  This analysis included products or materials that generators had to self-haul to reuse, 
recycling or composting facilities, as well as collection services provided by government, private or 
nonprofit service providers.  It also identified products or materials where residents or businesses are able 
to take those back to where they bought them. The following is a summary of that information. 

2.3 Reuse Services  
Many reusables are dumped at the “FreeBox,” a unique 
Telluride tradition.  Located downtown along a side street, 
the “FreeBox” is a set of large shelves on the side of a 
building where people donate all types of reusables, and they 
are available for free for anyone to take them away.  
Unfortunately, the FreeBox attracts too much stuff, that is 
either unusable, or not taken.  As a result, the Town of 
Telluride is now paying over $50,000 per year to haul these 
materials away and to dispose of them properly. 
 
Appliances and “white goods” are collected via spring clean-
up activities and once/year with household hazardous wastes.  
Usable textiles are reused by Pip’s consignment store in 
Telluride and the Second Chance store in Ridgeway.  A 
limited amount of textiles is placed in the FreeBox.  Books 
are donated to the library for reuse, and placed in the FreeBox.  A very limited amount of used building 
materials are taken to the Construction Depot or the new ReStore (of Habitat for Humanity) in Montrose.  
These facilities are located within blocks of each other, and attract similar types of donations. 

2.4 Recycling Services 
Waste Management (WM), which has the current exclusive franchise to provide curbside recycling in the 
Town of Telluride, hauls recyclables to Grand Junction. WM has a materials recovery facility (MRF) in 
Grand Junction that can process single-stream recyclables (commingled papers and containers). Bruin 

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 5 Gary Liss & Associates 
 

Catherine Jett
+sunriseinc@mvcable.net: Is there a way that we can use the EPA study to bolster this information?

Jonathan Greenspan
yes of course



Mountain Vi l lage,  Tel lur ide and San Miguel  County Zero Waste Act ion Plan 

Waste contracts with Sunrise7, LLC for all of its recycling services.  Bruin and Sunrise provide recycling 
services to about 60% of the region (Town of Mountain Village, Ophir, Lawson Hill, Sawpit, Placerville), 
95% of Ridgway and 20% of the Town of Telluride.  
 
Bruin (contracting through Sunrise) estimates that it collected 1,420 cubic yards of recyclables 
(commingled, paper, and cardboard) in 2007. Waste Management estimates that it collected 2,340 cubic 
yards of recyclables for the Town of Telluride, which is its primary service area for recycling. The total 
amount of recyclables diverted from landfills is 3,760 cubic yards, or only 8% of total waste produced.8 
This percentage may be a low estimate; however, it indicates that the region has much room for 
improvement in the area of recycling.  Further, visitors often ask why it is so hard to recycle when they 
are here as they often come from other locations in the country where recycling services are more 
prevalent. One of the challenges has been to institute recycling programs with resort lodges.9

 
Both Waste Management, Inc. and Bruin collect recyclables for an extra fee.  Curbside recycling 
services10 include the following materials: 

                                                      
7 Sunrise = San Juan Uncampaghre Natural Resources and Industrial Services for the Environment 
8 Source: Recycling Resources Economic Opportunity Grant Program, FY 09 Project Application, pages 4-5. 
9 Source: Recycling Resources Economic Opportunity Grant Program, FY 09 Project Application, page 3. 
10 This is list from Waste Management.  Bruin collects similar materials. 

♦ Newspapers 
♦ Glass bottles and jars 
♦ #1 and #2 Plastic bottles 
♦ Aluminum and tin cans 
♦ Cardboard boxes 
♦ White and colored paper 

♦ Magazines 
♦ Junk mail (including windowless envelopes) 
♦ Brochures and pamphlets 
♦ Computer printouts 
♦ Carbonless receipts

 
There are generally three categories of recyclables for commercial customers: 1) corrugated cardboard 
(broken down and stacked neatly next to the rolling carts); 2) white paper and newspaper; 3) aluminum, 
glass, plastic and steel/tin cans.  Bottles and jars must be rinsed; plastics #1 and #2 
are acceptable, but do not include lids; papers are not to be bundled or tied.  If 
cardboard is not broken down, this is a fee for its collection.  Special pick-ups 
include metal, wood or plastic crates and other bulky non-compactible materials. 
 
People may also drop off recyclables at the VCA (Village Court Apartments), 
Montrose Recycling Center, or in convenient recycling containers located 
throughout the public areas in the downtowns of Telluride and Mountain Village.  
Most of these public recycling containers are limited to bottles and cans only, with 
some locations also having public containers clearly labeled for newspapers only.  
 
Telluride Gravel has cement and excavating crushers that could be used for more 
construction and demolition recycling activities in the future.  The State highway 
spur to Telluride used recycled asphalt in the project’s mix.  More specification of 

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 6 Gary Liss & Associates 
 

Catherine Jett
Where are we in 2020? Is this data still being collected? Who has it?

Jonathan Greenspan
WM will not share numbers and Bruin supplies spome but tride fines them and they would rather pay the fine then produce the info

Catherine Jett
Let's reach out to these groups and see what their interest level is.

Jonathan Greenspan
which group

Jonathan Greenspan
yes still happens



Mountain Vi l lage,  Tel lur ide and San Miguel  County Zero Waste Act ion Plan 

that type of use could stimulate the recycling of concrete and asphalt products in the area. 
 
There are significant costs in hauling materials to recycling centers in Grand Junction and Denver. In 
Montrose, there is a major metals recycler, Recla Metals that buys recycled metals (including auto bodies) 
from the region, and has a rail connection for shipping large volumes to major markets.  However, they 
do not handle other recycled materials. There are also two construction and demolition (C&D) recyclers 
in Montrose – the Construction Depot and the Habitat for Humanity ReStore.  Both of these locations 
specialize in the reuse of C&D products, and don’t handle large volumes of C&D materials for recycling 
by grinding or other processing. 
 
Some businesses indicate that some of the recycling services are provided sporadically and result in over-
flowing containers.  Given the market conditions, it is to the credit of existing recyclers that they collect 
similar types of materials as accepted by other communities around Colorado.   By adjusting some of the 
costs for wasting as proposed below, the economic viability of recycling could be enhanced considerably. 

2.5 Composting Services  
Sunrise LLC provides valuable services to reuse dead trees or trees cut for fire mitigation as a resource for 
building trails, for firewood, for fencing posts, for landscaping 
chips, as well as selling logs to local mills. Sunrise is now able to 
provide local resources to substitute for mulches used in local 
construction projects that were coming from as far away as 
Montana and Idaho.   
 
Sunrise bought the first wood chipper in San Miguel County and 
began chipping wood material for use on the trails in addition to 
using logs for lining trails. Needing a place to stockpile wood 
products and equipment, Sunrise purchased the site of its proposed Resource Recovery Center in the 
Ilium Valley Industrial Park.  
 
Tree trimmers now also haul prunings, branches and stumps to either Sunrise or Fennbro Construction for 
chipping. Landscapers locally often use mulching mowers as well.   
 
However, there is no collection system currently for yard trimmings or other organics from residents and 
businesses on a regular basis.  There is also no on-going compostables processing system in the region.  
There have only been temporary composting operations set up for special events on a very limited basis. 
 
The festivals organized throughout the region produce an enormous amount of trash and compostable 
waste. The Town of Telluride and The New Community Coalition have been working with festivals to 
require and facilitate recycling and composting. The Telluride Bluegrass Festival, attracting over 10,000 
attendees a day for 4 days, has been able to reduce its trash by 50% as a result of voluntary recycling and 
compost collection sites staffed by volunteers.  Unfortunately, the composting has been done at temporary 
facilities and cannot be done on a continuous basis this way. 

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 7 Gary Liss & Associates 
 

Catherine Jett
Are there any in businesses in SMC now that would be willing to help with chipping now?

Jonathan Greenspan
not sure what you mean here

Jonathan Greenspan
yes for sure



Mountain Vi l lage,  Tel lur ide and San Miguel  County Zero Waste Act ion Plan 

2.6 Solid Waste Services  
Currently in San Miguel County, there are two private haulers for collecting solid wastes: Bruin Waste 
and Waste Management.  They are both located in Montrose County and service commercial and 
residential refuse needs of the region from there. San Miguel County uses Broad Canyon, a private 
landfill near Naturita (about 50 miles from Telluride and Mountain Village) in west Montrose County, for 
about 20% of its trash.  Both haulers haul the remaining 80% of waste from within San Miguel County to 
the Montrose County landfill (about 75 miles from Telluride and Mountain Village).   
 
Waste Management estimates commercial and residential trash from the region at 23,500 cubic yards of 
compacted refuse annually. Bruin estimates 25,300 compacted cubic yards of total waste hauled annually. 
Therefore, the region currently generates approximately 48,800 compacted cubic yards of waste 
annually11, or about 9,000 tons per year12.  Waste volumes increase in the summer months with the 
festivals and active construction season adding significantly to the waste stream. 
 
Unincorporated County and Norwood customers are not required to have trash pick up service. They have 
the option of taking their refuse to the regional landfill or to the County-owned transfer station west of 
Norwood. Most of the unincorporated subdivisions in the County have centralized trash enclosures for 
residents. Ophir residents have a centralized facility for trash and recycling serving the whole community. 
There is no curbside recycling offered anywhere in unincorporated San Miguel County or in Norwood.13

 
A sample of the typical garbage rate structures in the region is that of Waste Management for Telluride, 
effective April1, 2007: 

Table 1 - Telluride Garbage Rates 
 

SERVICE       Bi-Monthly Rate 
 Residential       per Household 
 65-gallon trash container with recycling     $47.38 
 95-gallon trash container with recycling     $51.22 
 18-gallon recycling bin only – 1 bin     $15.16 
 18-gallon recycling bin only – 2 bins     $28.32 
  
 Commercial       Bi-Monthly Rate 
 95-gallon recycling container – 1     $36.76 
 95-gallon recycling container – 2     $71.52 
 95-gallon recycling container – 3     $106.28 
 3-cubic yard dumpster for cardboard recycling    $104.00 
 

                                                      
11 Source: Recycling Resources Economic Opportunity Grant Program, FY 09 Project Application, page 4. 
12 Assuming a density of 370 pounds per compacted cubic yard. 
13 Source: San Miguel County, Sustainability Inventory, Prepared by ICLEI – Local Governments for Sustainability 
U.S.A., 2006 

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 8 Gary Liss & Associates 
 

Catherine Jett
Where are we now with population at ~8000?

Jonathan Greenspan
with no data then no numbers



Mountain Vi l lage,  Tel lur ide and San Miguel  County Zero Waste Act ion Plan 

All rates are based on weekly pickups and are billed bi-monthly.  Residential trash and recycling pickups 
are on Thursday and commercial recycling pickups are on Mondays.  The Town of Telluride provides 
billing on the water bills.  Waste Management pays Telluride a fee for providing that billing service.  In 
the event that customers do not pay their bill, the Town may stop all their water service. 
 
In Telluride, the City requires all businesses to pay for recycling service, and recycling services are 
provided as part of the core services.  However, businesses are NOT required to actually participate in the 
recycling programs.  Prior to 5 years ago, Bruin Waste did not offer recycling services.  As a result, the 
Town of Telluride has a unique contract structure for its competitive procurement of solid waste services. 
The Town has selected one hauler to provide the residential solid waste and recycling services, and to 
have the exclusive contract for recycling services at businesses.  The Town allows businesses to select 
their own waste hauler.  The current exclusive contract in Telluride is with Waste Management, which 
expires in 2010.  Five years ago, Bruin began offering recycling services through a subcontract with 
Sunrise, LLC.  If a business wants to use recycling services of Bruin and Sunrise, they are able to do so, 
but have to pay Waste Management for offering recycling services as well.  The Town solicits new 
contracts for solid waste services every 3 years, as they consider solid waste to be subject to local 
procurement requirements that no contract exceed 3 years in length.   
 
Interestingly, the San Miguel Power Association (SMPA) operates in the same region providing electric 
services.  SMPA is bound by contracts that must be re-negotiated every 10 years under CO law that 
governs such services. 
 
In Norwood, San Miguel County owns a Transfer Station with a drop-off recycling center.  The current 4-
year contract for that operation expires in June 2010. 
 
The Town of Telluride Department of Public Works indicated that it hauls wastes from street sweeping 
and wastes from City construction activities directly to the Broad Canyon Landfill in Montrose.  They 
pay $8 per cubic yard there, or about $50 per ton for disposal14. 
 
The Town of Mountain Villages operates a Transfer Station in 
their core area (see picture on right).  This includes a compactor 
for corrugated cardboard 
 
Waste Management operates a Transfer Station that is located 
in the Ilium Valley Industrial Park, down the hill, directly 
below the Sunrise LLC facility.  This Transfer Station primarily 
serves to compact the Municipal Solid Waste collected in the 
area into larger vehicles for shipping to landfills 50-75 miles 
away. 

                                                      
14 This assumes a density of about 320 pounds per cubic yard.  This is the disposal rate that is charged for wastes 
received from the public at this facility as well, and is the basis for other avoided disposal cost calculations in this 
Plan. 

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 9 Gary Liss & Associates 
 

Catherine Jett
Status of MV Transfer Station?

Jonathan Greenspan
operated by bruin for their own needs only

Catherine Jett
Status?

Jonathan Greenspan
the county just voted to increase our taxes to service this but we dont get the benefit



Mountain Vi l lage,  Tel lur ide and San Miguel  County Zero Waste Act ion Plan 

   
San Miguel County operates a Transfer Station at Norwood that provides many valuable services.  This 
station is open to all San Miguel County residents.  Many Montrose County residents also use the facility, 
as it is on their way to or from work for those commuting from Montrose County to Telluride or 
Mountain Village. This Transfer Station recycles aluminum cans, glass and newsprint paper, but not 
white or glossy paper or plastics. 

2.7 Special Wastes and Household Hazardous Wastes 
Special Wastes include: 
♦ Ash  
♦ Sewage Solids 
♦ Industrial Sludge 
♦ Treated Medical Waste 

♦ Bulky Items 
♦ Tires 
♦ Remainder/Composite Special Waste 

 
Sewage solids (also known as sludge or biosolids) are spread on non-food producing agricultural lands in 
Montrose County.  Bulky items and tires are collected as part of Spring and Fall Clean-ups. 
 
Telluride currently accepts Household Hazardous Wastes (HHW) dropped off at designated locations 
during Spring Cleanups, with support of San Miguel County.  In other communities, permanent drop-off 
locations have become the state-of-the-art so that HHW can be dropped off whenever the need arises, 
rather than waiting for once a year service.  Even with these state-of-the-art drop-off programs, only 1 to 
10% of all HHW are collected through these programs.  This highlights that the system is broken, and a 
new system is needed that is more effective and harnesses the forces of the marketplace to collect 
materials and design wastes out of the system. 
 

3 Service Opportunities 

The following list clearly identifies products and materials for which additional reuse, recycling or 
composting services are needed.  The following materials are not accepted in current area recycling 
programs: 
 
Recyclables 
♦ Telephone books 
♦ Books 
♦ Colored paper (Bruin does not accept; WM 

does) 
♦ Pressed cardboard or “chipboard” (like 

cereal boxes) 
♦  “Wet-strength” cardboard, like 6-pack or 

12-pack beverage container packages 
♦ Egg or Milk Cartons 

♦ Carbon Paper 
♦ Candy wrappers 
♦ Plastic containers #3-7 
♦ Plastic bags or stretch wrap (like Saran 

Wrap) 
♦ Expanded polystyrene packaging or 

“peanuts” (EPS, commonly known by 
proprietary name of Styrofoam) 

♦ Window glass, drinking glass, ceramics 
(plates or dishes), Pyrex or light bulbs 

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 10 Gary Liss & Associates 
 

Catherine Jett
Status? Need to reach out to WWT plant.

Jonathan Greenspan
being shipped to durango i think

Catherine Jett
Hmmmm, has this been changed? Need to reach out to EAP. If it is doing business as usual, how can we help change things?

Jonathan Greenspan
not sure what your refering to here

Jonathan Greenspan
program has not changed a bit same as it ever was



Mountain Vi l lage,  Tel lur ide and San Miguel  County Zero Waste Act ion Plan 

♦ Aluminum foil or pie tins 
♦ Carpet  
♦ Textiles  
♦ Batteries 
♦ Oil 
♦ Paint 
♦ Ewaste 
♦ Containers from oil, pesticides, paints or 

hazardous materials 
♦ Ash 

Compostables 
♦ Food or any organic waste  
♦ Food soiled cardboard or paper (including 

paper cups, plates, towels) 
♦ Waxed cardboard (generally used for  

shipping fruits and vegetables) 
♦ Wet paper  
♦ Used tissues 
♦ Liquids

 
In addition, there are limited reuse, recycling and composting services provided for:  
♦ Reusables 
♦ Construction, remodeling and demolition 

debris 
♦ Bulky Goods 

♦ Tires 
♦ Medical Wastes 
♦ Household hazardous wastes 

 

3.1 Know Your Waste and Recyclables 
The more specifically Telluride can identify which materials are disposed to landfill, the more clearly it 
can develop policies and programs to develop waste reduction, reuse, recycling and composting programs 
to target those materials.  To find a relevant point of comparison, GLA used waste composition data for 
Mammoth Lakes, CA. Mammoth Lakes is a comparable community to Telluride in many respects, and 
the State of California provides detailed estimates of the waste composition for both residential and 
commercial accounts in that region (see Appendix B). The data from Mammoth Lakes is adequate for the 
purposes of this Plan.  Estimates of the materials discarded in this region are presented in Table 1.  
 
However, it is clear that one of the priorities for San Miguel County should be to request that the State of 
Colorado provide similar waste composition analyses for small rural areas on the Western Slope as 
provided by the State of California.  Waste characterization sampling should include both summer and 
winter data, to identify seasonal variations in the waste stream.  Sampling should be conducted from all 
collection vehicles throughout the service area, (including waste haulers and recyclers), and self-haul 
vehicles from both businesses and residents to local transfer stations.  Such waste composition studies 
should be conducted every 5 years by the State to track on-going waste reduction progress.  This 
approach would provide an appropriate baseline for comparing results of new programs locally. 
 
Until the State completes this analysis, the region could confirm what are the largest materials being 
wasted by conducting a visual waste assessment.  This could involve a professional studying the contents 
of a variety of collection vehicles in advance of the waste being disposed at local transfer stations.  Based 
on prior work and their careful review of the wastes, they should be able to estimate the major 
components of the waste stream.  Alternatively, local college students or volunteers from TNCC could be 
trained by a professional to perform such a visual waste assessment.  This would not substitute for hard 

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 11 Gary Liss & Associates 
 

Catherine Jett
Status? Was this ever done? If not, we should do this!

Did San Miguel County ever reach out to the state? If they did, where is the report?

Jonathan Greenspan
not really any good info on this but Recycle Co working on it

Jonathan Greenspan
we will have folow up on this i believe EAP was supposed to do this



Mountain Vi l lage,  Tel lur ide and San Miguel  County Zero Waste Act ion Plan 

quantitative data needed to plan for and evaluate new programs over time.  However, this could provide 
sufficient information to confirm that the recommendations of this ZWAP are on target. 

3.2 Commodities Analysis 
The two largest categories of materials discarded are organic materials and paper products. Organics 
represent 48% of the total residential waste stream and 38% of the total commercial waste stream.  Paper 
represents 26% of the total residential waste stream and 35% of the total commercial waste stream.  These 
two categories eclipse the other material categories, and highlight the urgency to develop viable organics 
recovery programs and expanded paper recovery programs to meet a Zero Waste goal.   
 
The next largest material categories are plastic, metals, glass and construction materials.  In Telluride and 
Mountain Village, construction materials may be somewhat higher than the 3.6% of the total waste stream 
indicated from Mammoth Lakes data, due to the relatively large amount of remodeling, renovation and 
construction projects in this region, and the magnitude of each of the projects.  In Telluride, the 
commitment to maintaining heritage buildings also means that there is a significant need for reuse and 
salvaging services that will carefully dismantle old structures, so that the original materials are maintained 
in a usable condition.  This is generally referred to as “deconstruction”.   
 
GLA added a category of Reusables to Table 2 that was not in the original CIWMB database for 
Mammoth Lakes.  This is based on recent analyses of reusables in: San Luis Obispo, CA; Los Angeles, 
CA; and Austin, TX.  To adjust for that, the total amount estimated for the largest categories of waste 
(organics) was reduced for both residential and commercial sectors. 
 
The remaining materials in the solid waste stream are: textiles; household hazardous wastes (HHW); tires; 
bulky goods (e.g. furniture, bicycles and water heaters); white goods (large appliances like washers, 
dryers and dishwashers); and “E-Waste” (anything with a plug).  Although the latter materials are not 
disposed of in large quantities, some of them are very expensive to properly dispose of (particularly the 
HHW and E-wastes).  As a result, these materials need to be the focus of attention in state and federal 
laws requiring the takeback of these products by the manufacturers, or requiring other financial or 
physical responsibility being assumed by the manufacturers or retailers that sell such products.  

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 12 Gary Liss & Associates 
 



Mountain Vi l lage,  Tel lur ide and San Miguel  County Zero Waste Act ion Plan 

Table 2 - Commodities Analysis for San Miguel County 

Material Waste 
Composition15

Tons 
Disposed16

Value of 
Materials 

($/ton) 

Total Value of 
Materials 
Disposed 

Avoided 
Disposal Costs 
for Recovered 

Materials 
RESIDENTIAL      

♦ Organics  44% 824 $7 $5,769 $41,206 
♦ Paper  26% 487 $50 $24,349 $24,349 
♦ Plastic  9% 169 $50 $8,429 $8,429 
♦ Construction  6% 112 $4 $450 $5,619 
♦ Mixed Residue 5% 94 $0 $0 $4,683 
♦ Metals  4% 75 $40 $2,997 $3,746 
♦ Glass  3% 56 $10 $562 $2,810 
♦ Reusables 2% 37 $550 $20,603 $1,873 
♦ Special Wastes  0.8% 15 $0 $0 $749 
♦ Hazardous  0.3% 6 $5 $28 $281 

Totals 100% 1,900  $63,186 $93,744 
COMMERCIAL      

♦ Organics  36% 2,557 $7 $17,902 $127,872 

♦ Paper  35% 2,486 $50 $124,320 $124,320 

♦ Plastic  10% 710 $50 $35,520 $35,520 

♦ Glass  9% 639 $10 $6,394 $31,968 

♦ Metals  4% 284 $40 $11,366 $14,208 

♦ Construction  3% 213 $4 $852 $10,656 
♦ Reusables 2% 180 $550 $78,144 $7,104 

♦ Mixed Residue 0.6% 43 $0 $0 $2,131 

♦ Special Wastes  0.5% 36 $0 $0 $1,776 

♦ Hazardous  0% 0 $5 $0 $0 
Totals 100% 7,104  $274,499 $355,555 

Grand Totals  8,977  $337,684 $449,299 
 

The value of the materials currently disposed is over $330,000 each year. The cost avoidance identified in 
Table 2 should be viewed as one of the key sources of revenue that could be the engine of change and 
investment in equipment and programs needed to move towards Zero Waste.   
 
 
 
                                                      
15 Based on waste composition data from 1999 from the CA Integrated Waste Management Board for the Town of 
Mammoth Lakes 
16 Applied total tonnages for Mammoth Lakes times 1.4 (a factor of 7500 population for San Miguel County/5350 
population of Mammoth Lakes) 

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 13 Gary Liss & Associates 
 

Catherine Jett
How does this compare to the recent EPA study?

Jonathan Greenspan
i would have to put side by side



Mountain Vi l lage,  Tel lur ide and San Miguel  County Zero Waste Act ion Plan 

 

Organics  38% 

Paper  33% 

Plastic  10% 

Glass  8% 

Metals  4% 
Construction  3% 

Figure 1 - Major Commodities Discarded 

 

Organics  38%

Paper  33%

Plastic  10%

Glass  8%

Metals  4%
Construction  3%

Figure   Major Commodities Discarded

 
 

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 14 Gary Liss & Associates 
 



Mountain Vi l lage,  Tel lur ide and San Miguel  County Zero Waste Act ion Plan 

4 Recommended Programs, Facilities and Policies 

This section of the Plan outlines key elements of the Zero Waste Action Plan: new programs, facilities 
policies and incentives that the region should adopt to implement its Zero Waste Goal.   
 
Zero Waste focuses on reducing and designing wastes out of the system, reusing discarded materials and 
products for their highest and best use for their original form and function for as long as possible, then 
recycling and composting the rest.  The Zero Waste International Alliance defines Zero Waste to be: 

 
“A philosophy and visionary goal that emulates natural cycles, where all outputs are simply an 
input for another process. It means designing and managing materials and products to conserve 
and recover all resources and not destroy or bury them, and eliminate discharges to land, water or 
air that do not contribute productively to natural systems or the economy.”17  

 
For the region, although the intent of this Plan is to strive for Zero Waste, practically if the region diverts 
at least 90 percent of the waste generated by all sources (residential, business, schools, and 
institutions), it will be well on the way to Zero Waste and the program will be deemed a success. 
 
The following criteria were used to evaluate the merits of different policies, programs and facilities 
needed to meet the challenges identified above: 
 

¾ Potential for largest impact in diverting waste from landfill 
¾ Potential for most immediate impact in diverting waste from landfill 
¾ Potential for greatest visibility in diverting waste from landfill 
¾ Potential for involving community in diverting waste from landfill 
¾ Potential cost to implement 
¾ Ease of Implementation 
¾ Availability of existing markets or uses 
¾ Ability to create new markets or uses 

 
These were considered in making the recommendations below. 

4.1 Programs 
This section outlines programs the region should expand or implement to strive for Zero Waste. 

4.1.1 Refuse, Return and Design Out Waste 
1. Develop a web-based directory of businesses which will takeback products and packaging that 

are difficult to reuse, recycle or compost locally. 

                                                      
17 From: http://www.zwia.org/standards.html

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 15 Gary Liss & Associates 
 

http://www.zwia.org/standards.html
Catherine Jett
+jg@sunrisetelluride.com 
+heidi@tmvoa.org 
+mfollen246@gmail.com 
+jproteau@tellurideskiresort.com 
+pberry@mtnvillage.org 
+mprohaska@mtnvillage.org 
+ingamar20@gmail.com 

Please review the "Programs" section of the Zero Waste Program that was adopted by the town in 2008 and is supposed to be completed by 2025.

Please do so prior to the June 9 meeting. This starts on page 15 of the Zero Waste Report. Comment on which items you think are practical/possible. Please keep in mind that we may not have financial nor staff support for some time.

Thank you!

Jonathan Greenspan
not cohesive



Mountain Vi l lage,  Tel lur ide and San Miguel  County Zero Waste Act ion Plan 

2. Encourage businesses by policies and incentives to take back their products and packaging and to 
reduce the volume and toxicity of wastes by redesigning manufacturing processes.   

3. Develop a Shop Smart Program that encourages residents to buy reusables, recycled and durable 
products. 

4. Allow all legal documents to be filed on-line without the use of paper. 
5. Support the Sheep Mountain Alliance Plastic Bag Ban unless all major users of such bags 

voluntarily phase them out by a target date. 
6. To reduce the use of paper in the real estate industry, all the realtors should join together to create 

a single directory for available residential properties for sale, a single directory for available 
residential properties for rent and a single directory for available commercial properties for sale 
or rent.  This would eliminate a lot of duplication of dueling individual company real estate 
directories, be more cost effective for realtors, and dramatically decrease the use of paper.   

7. To reduce the use of paper in the hospitality industry, there should be a review of what types of 
papers are produced in which locations, then evaluate whether an electronic transaction could 
replace the paper transaction.  This would also demonstrate the ingenuity of the region to tourists 
and impress them as to the commitment to operating with a minimum of paper wasted. 

4.1.2 Reuse and Repair 
In the waste composition charts, reusables appear to be a small percentage of the total waste stream.  
However, within several of the other categories, there may be a number of reusable items that are 
prominently made of one material type or another (e.g. ceramics, glass, metals, plastics).  In a similar 
rural area of northern California, reusables comprised 6% of the materials discarded by generators.18  
Reusables often produce the highest value materials and products recovered from discards.19  Many 
discarded items may be reused, depending on its condition and function.  Nearly everything that is 
reusable could also be recycled, but usually for a much lower value.  Reusable goods are useful to buyers 
either for their original intended purpose, or for a creative reuse function.  For example, used wrought 
iron gates can be sold individually for hundreds of dollars, but their value is reduced to pennies on the 
dollar by treating them as scrap.  Reuse operators are business people who specialize in attracting, 
receiving, organizing, and selling discarded reusable goods.  Reuse operators vary in the amount of effort 
they take to upgrade their products by cleaning, sorting, organizing and/or repairing them.  The average 
value of reusables (not including used clothing) could be as much as $550 per ton.20   
 
One of the most visible reuse programs in the area is the “Free Box” in downtown Telluride.  That should 
be expanded, organized and integrated with other reuse programs recommended in this Plan.  Instead of 
spending up to $50,000 per year to landfill materials inappropriately placed by the Free Box, some of 
those funds should be used to improve the maintenance and usability of the Free Box, and to fund the new 
programs recommended here.  Any excess materials collected at the Free Box should be delivered to 
reuse operations elsewhere (e.g., the Resource Recovery Park or reuse operations in Montrose) to sort out 
where to distribute these valuable materials and products for their highest and best use. 
                                                      
18 Del Norte Resource Recovery Park Cluster Analysis, Del Norte Solid Waste Management Authority, prepared by Gary Liss & Associates, 
February 2001, Page 6. 
19 Ibid, page 4. 
20 Source: Richard Anthony Associates, analysis of reusables value in Los Angeles, CA and Austin, TX, 2008. 

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 16 Gary Liss & Associates 
 



Mountain Vi l lage,  Tel lur ide and San Miguel  County Zero Waste Act ion Plan 

 
There should be a concerted effort to promote reuse and repair in the region with a web-based directory, 
other internet services (e.g., e-Bay, Craig’s List and FreeCycle.org), garbage bill inserts, brochure and 
cooperative advertisements in tourist literature.  Programs and services that should be promoted include: 
 

♦ The donation of edible food to food-banks and other discarded food to animal-feed from 
restaurants and grocers. 

♦ Local antique and thrift stores, repair shops (e.g. appliances, autos, furniture) and local electronic 
equipment, furniture and appliance resellers. 

♦ Deconstruction services and used building materials stores in Montrose. 
 

San Miguel County should adopt a free swap policy for reusables and household hazardous wastes at the 
County Transfer Station to provide a place for the community to share these goods at no cost. 
 
There are a number of operations that collect and/or sell used clothing in the region (e.g., Pip’s 
Consignment store in Telluride).  The City could promote these operations, as well as include the 
collection of clean, bagged textiles in the residential recycling collection program (perhaps once a month 
or coinciding with Spring and Fall Cleanups).  If the latter is done, the region should encourage the 
collaboration of existing textile recyclers with residential recyclers proposing services to the City, 
particularly for marketing of those materials.   
 
One of the needs for existing used clothing retailers is to create more opportunities for sale of such 
clothing in traditional clothing stores.  The TNCC should work with major retailers of clothing in the area 
to establish “Bargain Basement” sections of their stores where premium used clothes could be sold that 
would be supplied by existing thrift stores, with the profits from sales split between them.  This would 
provide an expanded way for major retailers to highlight their Green attributes and sensitivity to the 
current economy, and forge a new partnership that truly provides greater social equity through support of 
local job-creating thrift businesses and nonprofits.  A model for this might be the Nordstrom or Filene’s 
Basement concept, coupled with the “Blue Hangar” of Goodwill stores in Austin, where those clothes that 
don’t sell in the Goodwill stores get sold for pennies on the dollar in “lot” sales that support many local 
businesses.  The latter is actually the most profitable cost center for this major network of Goodwill stores 
in Austin. 
 
A similar concept should be pursued with other reusable products that are discarded.  Used lumber, 
building materials and compost products should be marketed through major home repair, hardware stores 
and nurseries in the region.  Used furniture should be marketed through furniture stores in the region.  
Used appliances should be marketed through appliance stores in the region.  A whole network of repair 
and refurbishing businesses or nonprofits could be established to upgrade materials and products that are 
collected through large-scale reuse programs to attain a higher price in such retail activities.  This is the 
model that Urban Ore uses in Berkeley, CA.  Urban Ore specializes in large volume throughput of 
products through their system. Urban Ore estimates that they supply about 100-200 other local businesses 
and nonprofits (including many antique stores and specialty stores such as furniture manufacturers from 
used wood) that sell these products for added value.  The other businesses and nonprofits add value 

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 17 Gary Liss & Associates 
 

Catherine Jett
closed in 2019

Jonathan Greenspan
yes but second chance open



Mountain Vi l lage,  Tel lur ide and San Miguel  County Zero Waste Act ion Plan 

through the way they polish, repair, manufacture, display and/or advertise items. Urban Ore should be 
requested to do training for the display and marketing of used building materials and other reuse 
operations. 
 
One of the major roles that the TNCC should play to promote reuse is working with historic preservation 
advocates and those seeking to restore and reuse buildings, rather than deconstruct or demolish them.  
TNCC should work with Towns and the County to include “adaptive reuse” as a priority in City building 
standards for residential and commercial construction and to not allow the demolition of any building that 
is still functional. 
 
The TNCC could help form a Reuse Collaborative with businesses and nonprofits throughout the region 
(including as far as Montrose).  The function of the Collaborative should be to help in marketing all the 
materials and products collected through various reuse networks, and to help develop the above 
distribution system.  

4.1.3 Organics 
There are currently no collection programs for organics in the region.  As organics represent 38% of all 
materials currently discarded, this is clearly the largest service gap that needs to be filled for the region to 
move towards Zero Waste.   
 
A hierarchy for organics use21 should be considered that prioritizes the use of discarded food as follows: 
♦ Prevent food waste  
♦ Feed people 
♦ Convert to animal feed and/or rendering 
♦ Compost 
 
Major generators of food scraps in the region include: 
♦ Hotels, Lodges and Resorts 
♦ Bars and Restaurants 
♦ Groceries 
♦ Festivals 
♦ Schools 
♦ Residents 
 
Using Mammoth Lakes data, about 75% of the commercial food scraps are generated by hotels, lodges 
and resorts, and 24% by bars and restaurants.  These are also the largest generators of paper (82% by 
hotels, lodges and resorts and 9% by bars and restaurants). 
 
In addition, the Festivals generate a large amount of food scraps and compostable products.  According to 
the above evaluation criteria, all three of these categories are very visible and therefore a high priority for 

                                                      
21 Based on recommendations of the CA Integrated Waste Management Board at: www.ciwmb.ca.gov/FoodWaste/ 

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 18 Gary Liss & Associates 
 

Catherine Jett
Same as above.

Jonathan Greenspan
i dont know

Catherine Jett
Is this being done by EAP? Why or why not?

Jonathan Greenspan
i dont  know



Mountain Vi l lage,  Tel lur ide and San Miguel  County Zero Waste Act ion Plan 

focused attention. When you add in food-soiled paper to the mix of what could be composted, this needs 
to be the highest priority for implementation of all Zero Waste programs.  As the value of the materials 
for composting is not as high as for other materials, the implementation of organics programs will require 
a strong public/private partnership with support from local nonprofits to develop the most cost effective 
program. 
 
Commercial organics are estimated to be about 3 times as large an amount discarded as residential 
organics.  Therefore, it is appropriate to focus first on implementing organics programs in the commercial 
sector.  There are a number of approaches that should be pursued to accomplish that following the 
organics hierarchy noted above: 
 
♦ Support local purchase of food and beverages to decrease carbon footprint associated with food 

services and increase local jobs and agriculture.  Encourage purchasing of fruits and vegetables in 
season locally. 

♦ Promote local food banks to help feed the needy.  Encourage all bars, restaurants, grocers and other 
sources of discarded food to participate.  Encourage businesses to highlight the donations they make 
to patrons. 

♦ Demonstrate the use of an on-site composting system for lodges, hotels, resorts and ski areas that 
have sufficient room to dedicate a couple of parking spaces to such operations.  By using on-site 
composters, food generators would reduce their cost of garbage collection and disposal by over 80%, 
and that avoided cost can be used to purchase the on-site composting system and expertise needed to 
operate them successfully.   

♦ Encourage one or more service providers in the region to offer on-site composting systems for lodges, 
hotels and resorts that have sufficient room on a lease-basis like a garbage or cardboard compactor.  
The service provider should also provide training on how to use the composter, and maintain the 
composter in good operating condition.  The service provider could also offer to “cure” compost off-
site if desired, so that smaller units, or less number of units, are needed to process materials on-site. 

♦ Encourage one or more service providers in the region to develop a composting program that can 
accept food scraps and food-soiled paper.  To support that composting program, service providers 
should be able to charge a fee for the service, which should be less than the cost of garbage collection 
and disposal to provide an incentive for participation by food generating businesses.  The start of such 
a system could be done on a subscription basis, with the service provider starting the service once it 
has subscribed a minimum number of customers to make it cost effective. 

♦ Alternatively, the Town of Telluride and/or the Town of Mountain Village could require the 
participation of all food-generating businesses over a certain size to participate in a food-composting 
program by Ordinance, to get the program started. 

♦ The service provider should obtain sufficient size or numbers of composting equipment to provide 
redundancy and backup to the system, so that reliability will not be a problem. 

♦ Encourage home and restaurant vermiculture systems as alternatives for composting on-site (as 
recommended by ICLEI Sustainability Inventory) 

♦ TNCC and Sunrise LLC applied together to the State of CO, Recycling Resources Economic 
Opportunity Grant Program for funding to purchase a composter for a Resource Recovery Center in 
the Industrial Park in Ilium Valley, approximately five miles from Telluride.  On April 25, 2008, they 

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 19 Gary Liss & Associates 
 

Catherine Jett
Develop a composting program for commercial biz?

Jonathan Greenspan
hmm u know anyone thats been saying this for a long time

Jonathan Greenspan
a designated plan is needed

Catherine Jett
Yay! Farm to Community. How can we support more local farmers?

Jonathan Greenspan
expand that program but not sure whats considered local and an inventory of how many out there



Mountain Vi l lage,  Tel lur ide and San Miguel  County Zero Waste Act ion Plan 

were notified that this grant proposal would be funded.  This will jump start the composting programs 
noted above with the seed capital needed to quickly implement this program. 

♦ Provide shared chipping services in one of the following ways that have been offered by other 
communities:  
1) A central location open on Saturdays with a staff person there to chip yard trimmings brought in 
from residents, with chips provided back to the residents;  
2) A central location open for deposits of yard trimmings all the time, with a mobile chipper brought 
in periodically to chip the materials, and the chips then made available to users of the facility; or  
3) A mobile chipper operation, like arborists use, with residents having the option of yard trimmings 
left on the curb being taken away or left for them to use as mulch. 

 
As the region continues to grow its tourist industry, the amount of discarded food and food-contaminated 
paper from the hospitality industry is also likely to grow substantially.  As a result, there is a need for 
both residential and commercial organics collection programs that would collect yard trimmings, 
discarded food, and food-contaminated paper on a regular basis.  The region should work to establish a 
residential program once there are one or more composting processing facilities in the region that can 
handle materials.  The design of the residential collection program could collect 
 
♦ Discarded food separately from yard trimmings, as done in Toronto, Italy and the Philippines 
♦ Combined food and yard trimmings, as done in most locations that have started residential organics 

collection programs in California. 
 
The weekly separate collection of discarded food from residents would be too costly to implement on its 
own.  However, if rolled out with the proper rate incentives (see below) and a switch to every other week 
collection of rubbish, it should be economically viable.  In Toronto they provide a 14-gallon Norseman 
locking container for each household to set out discarded food.  That food is then taken to an enclosed 
digestion system, where methane gas is recovered as an energy source, and the “digestate” is then 
composted.  Toronto collects rubbish every other week, as they no longer have to collect it weekly once 
the putrescibles (Food scraps) are collected at least weekly.  Toronto is in the process of retooling its 
program to automate the collection of these containers with slightly larger containers (about 18-20 
gallons).  This is due to the large number of worker injuries from bending to get such a small container 
that is also very heavy.  In Italy, they have pioneered collecting discarded food twice a week in smaller 
buckets.  In the Philippines they organized residential separate collection of discarded food by 
“Barangays” or neighborhoods.  Both Italy and the Philippines are using very low technology systems 
and reporting better efficiencies than the more high technology solutions developed in the U.S. 
 
In the Town of Telluride, the Town was about to implement a new collection system with “Bear-Proof” 
containers.  This is an excellent time for the Town to review its container and collection options more 
broadly, and to provide new containers that are designed to be both Bear-Proof and Green.  The sooner 
the results are in from the commercial pilot organics programs, the quicker the Town may proceed with 
its new collection system and containers. 

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 20 Gary Liss & Associates 
 

Catherine Jett
Is our composting program accomplishing any of this?

Jonathan Greenspan
yes tech has partially solved this but a bigger system needs to be put into place that will create demand especilly if tsg signs on



Mountain Vi l lage,  Tel lur ide and San Miguel  County Zero Waste Act ion Plan 

4.1.4 Paper 
There are a variety of paper recycling programs in Telluride, including residential curbside and 
commercial recycling, paper recycling bins located sporadically throughout the downtowns of both 
Telluride and Mountain Village, and at the recycling drop-off at the San Miguel County transfer station in 
Norwood. However, 33% of the remaining waste is still comprised of recyclable paper products including 
office paper, newspaper and cardboard.  As a result, it is clear that there is still a large gap in both services 
being provided, and, incentives to recycle more paper.   
 
As a large source of paper is from the hospitality and real estate industries, efforts should be pursued to 
both reduce the use of paper wherever possible (see above), and to place far more paper or single-stream 
recycling containers at all points of public use or paper generation.   
 
Every lodge should provide reusable bags to guests at registration with instructions listed on the bag to 
take single-stream recyclables to the designated common area at the lodge.  Guests should be able to 
purchase extra bags with a Telluride logo at both registration desks and area stores.  Guests that do not 
return their reusable bags at checkout should be charged for those bags (like mini-bars are charged at 
check-out). 
 
Every public trash bin should also have at least a single-stream recycling container next to it.  This is 
particularly important in areas of high visibility, such as in the downtown or core areas, in the ski areas, in 
the Gondola areas, at the Airport, and wherever public events and festivals are held. 
 
In areas of high paper generation areas (e.g., where newspapers and real estate literature are on display), 
paper recycling containers should be placed right next to them.  These public containers could be 
sponsored by the real estate industry, with advertisements on the sides of the containers (like bus shelters 
or benches are funded in some communities), as an alternative to getting their name out via paper 
directories. 

4.1.5 Construction, Remodeling, Landclearing and Demolition Debris (C&D) 
With the commitment of Telluride to its heritage buildings, the deconstruction and reuse of C&D debris 
could generate a number of business opportunities.  Existing reuse operators (e.g., Construction Depot 
and Habitat for Humanity in Montrose) or others may want to partner with local businesses interested in 
expanding into this area.  This expansion could be facilitated by policies adopted that encourage the 
deconstruction of buildings and the reuse of used building materials.   
 
Similarly, local recyclers may be interested in expanding into more recycling of C&D debris, if policies 
are adopted that support it (see policies section below).  Programs need to expand to provide separate 30 
to 40-cy bins for single-stream recyclables, corrugated, gypsum, lumber, stumps and plant debris, 
concrete, asphalt, bricks, tile and mixed C&D debris at construction sites.  Policies to require all projects 
over a certain size to meet waste diversion requirements should be pursued as recommended below.  
Education and training needs to be provided for all contractors, homebuilders and property managers to 
make sure they are aware of the policies and programs. 

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 21 Gary Liss & Associates 
 



Mountain Vi l lage,  Tel lur ide and San Miguel  County Zero Waste Act ion Plan 

4.1.6 Other Recyclables 
Metal cans are recycled primarily through local curbside recycling programs, and major scrap metal items 
are recovered primarily from C&D activities.  As scrap metal prices have increased dramatically in the 
past year due to major industrialization of China and India, there may be new opportunities to collect and 
process metals that will be cost effective in today’s markets that were never possible before.  The region 
should request that their contracted waste haulers add scrap metals to the list of materials collected 
curbside, and from businesses.  Policies establishing waste diversion goals for businesses would 
encourage increased recovery and recycling of metal and other recyclables. 
 
Glass beverage and food containers are collected in curbside recycling programs and through commercial 
recycling programs.  It is likely that a large amount of the remaining glass could be recovered through the 
implementation of a commercial program targeted to the hospitality industry (e.g. bars, restaurants and 
lodging).   
 
Local recyclers do not collect all recyclable plastics.  As plastics continue to proliferate in their uses, it is 
incumbent upon the region to either develop programs to recycle these materials, or develop policies that 
get retailers and producers to takeback the plastics used in their products and packaging.  

4.1.7 Education and Outreach 
Development and implementation of a public education program, for businesses, residents and visitors is 
critically important to expanding reuse, recycling and composting programs to achieve Zero Waste.  A 
communications program should be developed after the design of new waste diversion programs and 
incentives.  Implementation of the education program should begin in advance of the implementation of 
any new programs, policies and incentives.  Communications with all aspects of the community is critical 
to the success of any new program or policy, including multiple languages, lots of signs and lots of 
graphics (given that people come here from all over the world).  Trash and recycling containers 
throughout county should be color-coded (Blue = recycle, Green = organics, Black/gray = trash). Of great 
importance will be highlighting the links between Zero Waste and climate change, and to report on the 
climate change benefits of local Zero Waste actions. 
 
A key target for Zero Waste education should be working with the schools in the area to adopt Zero 
Waste into curricula and to implement Zero Waste systems at all schools and administrative offices. 
Campaigns should include incentives and convenient programs that make it simple and easy for students, 
faculty and staff to participate.  Ask students through Student Councils as to what incentives would be of 
most interest (e.g., first in line on a powder day or a day off from school). Seek celebrities to promote 
Zero Waste and make it “cool” or “hot” (depending on what generation is targeted). Class contests (as 
recommended by ICLEI Sustainability Inventory) with prizes could be patterned after Recyclemania, 
which is being conducted all across the country on college campuses.22  A Recycling or Sustainability 
Science Fair could be organized at the high school to highlight sustainability principles, challenges and 

                                                      
22 See: http://www.nrc-recycle.org/recyclemania1.aspx

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 22 Gary Liss & Associates 
 

http://www.nrc-recycle.org/recyclemania1.aspx
Catherine Jett
Some strong points in here that we can use.

Jonathan Greenspan
yes



Mountain Vi l lage,  Tel lur ide and San Miguel  County Zero Waste Act ion Plan 

opportunities.23 Art and poster contests could also be used positively to promote Zero Waste. An 
international program, Odyssey of the Mind, that gives kids a problem to solve could be enlisted to 
promote Zero Waste, and encourage kids to participate in their contests. 
 
Helping visitors to understand local recycling, which may differ from their hometown, needs to be an 
additional focus for the reuse, recycling and composting programs education and outreach programs.  As 
part of that, there will be a need for on-going education of cleaning crews, as there is substantial turnover 
of employees.   

4.2 Facilities 
Before any new programs can be started, markets need to be identified for all the materials to be 
collected.  The markets could be local businesses or nonprofits, or more distant ones.  For products to be 
processed locally, the businesses or nonprofits may need to expand their existing facilities to handle more 
materials, or there may be a need to site new facilities.  Local governments in the region should build 
upon the investments and capacity of existing operators before developing new facilities. In the event that 
existing operators are not interested or able to operate needed new facilities, local governments should 
actively solicit the participation of other potential operators locally, regionally and nationally. 

4.2.1 Composting 
The most important facility that is needed to move forward with Zero Waste in the region is an on-going 
composting facility.  There are many ways that the program could be developed (as described above).  
Before any major new composting program can be started though, an on-going composting facility needs 
to be built somewhere. 
 
Major progress has been achieved regarding this.  The USEPA has awarded a grant to TNCC and Sunrise, 
LLC for a composter and a baler.  Sunrise proposed to get a composter that is mobile, so that it may be 
moved on-site or to major festivals and events, as needed.  Most of the time the composter will be located 
at the Ilium Valley Industrial Park, on a 3.85-acre site owned by Sunrise, LLC.   
 
 

4.2.2 C&D Processing 
There is a need to expand the C&D processing capacity in the region, particularly for commingled 
construction and remodeling materials, and mixed demolition materials. There are no available services to 
recycle pallets, drywall, and wood products, and those materials are currently landfilled.24 Single items 
should be able to be recycled more readily in the future by those who provide the heavier processing 
capabilities as well. 

                                                      
23 See the South Bay Business Environmental Coalition Science Fair as a good example, at: 
http://sbbec.org/scifair.htm. Also, ZERI fables provide great stories of sustainability principles at: 
http://www.chelseagreen.com/2006/items/zeriset or http://www.zerilearning.org/
24 Source: Recycling Resources Economic Opportunity Grant Program, FY 09 Project Application, page 1. 

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 23 Gary Liss & Associates 
 

http://sbbec.org/scifair.htm
http://www.chelseagreen.com/2006/items/zeriset
http://www.zerilearning.org/
Catherine Jett
Key point.

Jonathan Greenspan
yes

Catherine Jett
This was true in 2008. Does the team feel this has changed? Why or why not?

Jonathan Greenspan
hasnt changed even more so now



Mountain Vi l lage,  Tel lur ide and San Miguel  County Zero Waste Act ion Plan 

 
To expand the C&D processing infrastructure, there needs to be a larger demand for the services.  In 
many communities they are adopting C&D ordinances to stimulate that demand.  Assuming the policies 
recommended below are implemented, then the existing recycling operators should be able to justify 
investment in new equipment to process more commingled and mixed materials.  These should be 
operated in properly zoned areas, preferably heavy industrial, to be compatible with their neighbors. 
 
Sorting, grinding, and baling equipment are needed at one or more recycling facilities in the area, 
especially for the commingled and mixed materials.  Mobile or portable sorting lines can be obtained for 
$200,000 - $500,000, depending on whether new or used, and the amounts and types of materials targeted 
for sorting.  Grinding equipment is more expensive, but initially could be found used for several hundred 
thousand dollars to get facilities off the ground.  Baling equipment can be obtained for $50,000  - 
$500,000, again depending on whether new or used, and the amounts and types of materials targeted for 
sorting.   
 
C&D processing facilities also need to handle all types of used building materials identified in the 
programs discussion. The used building materials reuse and recycling could be located at the C&D 
processing facilities, adjacent to existing home repair and hardware stores, or as standalone locations like 
the Construction Depot and Habitat for Humanity ReStore in Montrose.  
 
 A way to move forward most easily in the region would be to build on the existing facilities in Montrose, 
and encourage people who commute for jobs in Telluride or Mountain Village that live in Montrose to 
haul reusable products to Montrose for marketing through the existing infrastructure that has been set up.  
That would jump start the flow of materials, provide immediate outlets for those materials in the San 
Miguel County region, and help Montrose commuters offset their increasingly costly commute costs by 
adding a new service in backhauling these products to markets. 
 
Similarly, the region has not been a major supplier of used metals to Recla Metals in Montrose in the past.  
One or more of the region’s recyclers should develop a stronger relationship to recycle metals with Recla 
Metals, as one of the largest recyclers in the area. 
 

4.2.3 Reuse 
Probably the biggest needs for facilities for reuse are warehousing functions that could help absorb the 
ebb and flow of products that are collected prior to distribution.  The extent of the warehousing needs 
depends on how many players get involved in the reuse and recycling of products.  If the decentralized 
ideas suggested above take hold, then there may be only a small need for a general warehouse function 
that could be leased out on a spot basis as needed to help in the ups and downs of market conditions.  This 
could be done at the Resource Recovery Park proposed below, or another location.   
 
In addition, the amount of warehousing needs could be decreased dramatically by an effective 
computerized matching service for materials reuse or resale.  Although there have been many materials 

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 24 Gary Liss & Associates 
 



Mountain Vi l lage,  Tel lur ide and San Miguel  County Zero Waste Act ion Plan 

reuse matching services set up around the country, probably the best model is the LA Shares system.  LA 
Shares works with schools and nonprofits throughout the LA City boundaries to identify what needs they 
have for usable products discarded as excess inventory by companies in the area.  Nonprofits and schools 
give LA Shares their specific needs.  When items become available from businesses discarding products, 
the nonprofits and schools “bid” on getting those items.  The computer selects winning nonprofits and 
schools by a random number calculator.  LA Shares then advises the nonprofits and schools who is 
donating the items, and the business and nonprofit or school make arrangements between the two of them 
to get the products being donated.   
 
The LA Shares model could be replicated locally in the region.  This would decrease the need for lots of 
warehousing capacity, and would be a great adjunct to one or more of the local reuse or recycling service 
providers in the region. 

4.2.4 Resource Recovery Park 
A Resource Recovery Park (RR Park) is a location where reuse, recycling and composting businesses co-
locate to gain added efficiencies in operating, marketing and serving the public.25  RR Parks are naturally 
evolving at many landfills and transfer stations in CA.  Instead of just evolving, the concept of Resource 
Recovery Parks is to actually PLAN for that to happen, and design in price incentives with the way rates 
and fees are set, and to design in the proper flow of materials to encourage users to stratify their loads to 
drop reusables and recyclables off first, then compostables and C&D (which may require some tip fee to 
cover their costs), and then to dump any little amount of trash that they couldn't figure out how to sort out, 
last (with the highest costs for dumping that). 

The Towns of Telluride and Mountain Village and San Miguel County should support the development of 
one or more Resource Recovery Parks (RR Park) in the region.  As noted above, Sunrise LLC has 
proposed the development of such a facility in the Ilium Valley Industrial Park, less than 4 miles from 
Mountain Village.   

The Towns and San Miguel County should support the development of the Sunrise RR Park (and possibly 
others that are complementary) by: supporting requests for grants and loans for activities there as 
promoting the public purposes of pursuing Zero Waste in the region; providing low-cost loans or grants 
for site improvements if needed to supplement or match grant programs; deferral of property taxes in the 
first 10 years as would be done in urban renewal areas; adopt the location into official plans for the 
region, including Solid Waste, Sustainability and General Plans; and generally to endorse, provide 
technical assistance and promote the Park.   

The Sunrise RR Park could co-locate collection and processing for organics, reusables and recyclables not 
currently processed in the region.  The RR Park should aggregate, segregate and distribute reusable 
products at wholesale prices to supply reuse stores throughout the region.  The RR Park could also 
include retail sales of used building materials, used furniture and appliances, and compost products and a 
free swap program for appropriate household hazardous wastes (e.g. paint and garden supplies) and 

                                                      
25 See Resource Recovery Park case study written by Gary Liss & Associates at: 
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/Publications/LocalAsst/31001011.doc

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 25 Gary Liss & Associates 
 

http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/Publications/LocalAsst/31001011.doc
Catherine Jett
Is this still even being discussed?

Jonathan Greenspan
no



Mountain Vi l lage,  Tel lur ide and San Miguel  County Zero Waste Act ion Plan 

reusable products.  The RR Park could also tie in with local schools and nonprofits to donate products 
needed. 

Sunrise has full support from local governments and the local ski area to develop the RR Park at the Ilium 
Industrial Park. With funding from grants and private investments, Sunrise will be able to divert from 
landfills: Ferrous and non-ferrous metals; Wood waste (from construction debris, tree debris, pallets, and 
like products); Drywall; Yard and food waste; and Traditional recyclables (including plastic, tin, 
aluminum, glass, and paper).  

4.2.5 Transfer Stations 
The existing recycling bins at the County Transfer Station require more frequent collection or greater 
capacity so that there is more room for recyclables dropped off by residents on the west side of the 
County. 
 
Depending on what services are developed by Sunrise, either Waste Management’s Transfer Station 
and/or the San Miguel County Transfer Station could also be expanded to include some attributes of a RR 
Park.  San Miguel County is particularly well placed to assist in the collection of manure from the County 
Fairgrounds, which is located across the street. 
 
The Towns of Telluride and Mountain Village could also transfer the wastes they collect in Public Works 
projects at either Waste Management’s or the County’s Transfer Station.  This would decrease their 
hauling costs, time and environmental impacts considerably from current practices.  Once the RR Park is 
operating, the Towns should recycle as much of the materials they collect from Public Works projects as 
possible at the RR Park. 

4.2.6 Landfills as a Last Resort  
Why discuss landfills in a Zero Waste Action Plan?  Because the policies and economics that govern 
landfills will impact on the perceived cost effectiveness of alternatives to landfilling, such as waste 
reduction, reuse, recycling and composting.  In addition, although Zero Waste is the goal, it will not be 
achieved overnight, and therefore well-designed and operated landfills should be viewed as a scarce 
resource to be optimized and conserved as much as possible. 
 
Landfills generally are also one of the largest contributors to greenhouse gas emissions in North America, 
and many landfills have leaked toxics underground to neighboring properties, causing major liabilities for 
the owners. 
 
As a result, it is critically important for the region to work actively with Montrose County to make sure 
that all landfills used by residents and businesses in the region meet the highest environmental standards, 
and reflect their full past, present and reasonably anticipated future costs in their user fees. 
 
Specifically, Montrose County should incorporate into the user fees for its landfills: 
 

¾ Capital and operating costs (including site acquisition costs) 

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 26 Gary Liss & Associates 
 



Mountain Vi l lage,  Tel lur ide and San Miguel  County Zero Waste Act ion Plan 

¾ Liability for contamination and cleanup of existing sites  
¾ Current and future gas and leachate collection systems 
¾ Current and future gas and leachate monitoring costs  
¾ Closure and post-closure costs, including a commitment to perpetual maintenance and 

cleanup of the landfills (like a cemetery), to make sure that those costs are planned for and 
budgeted over the life of the operating facilities.  

¾ Long-term liabilities from future contamination due to leaks of gas or leachate by setting 
aside dedicated funds or obtaining insurance to cover the long-term liability of perpetual 
maintenance and cleanup of all County landfills.   

 
Ideally, Montrose County should also develop new processing capabilities at their landfills that pre-
process all wastes before burying them to recover all recyclables remaining in the waste stream and leach 
out all toxics and gases so that they bury only materials tested to be inert. This is the approach taken in 
Halifax, Nova Scotia26 and the European Union (in their 1999 Landfill Directive).  
 
If all the above costs were factored into user fees charged today, the total cost to users of the Montrose 
County landfill system would more appropriately reflect the value of the landfills, its potential impacts on 
climate change, and provide sufficient funds to ensure that there are no problems with leaking of gas or 
leachate in the long-term.  If Montrose County is concerned about the costs to its residents and 
businesses, as owner and operator of their landfill, they could charge higher fees on users outside of the 
County, to at least assure that their County residents don’t subsidize the broader region’s costs for 
landfilling.  Under recent US Supreme Court decisions, such differential fees are likely to be upheld. 
 
San Miguel County should work through regular intergovernmental meetings with Montrose County to 
adjust its landfilling costs to reflect these concerns and other opportunities for regional collaboration 
detailed in this ZWAP.  Once a firm estimate is developed by Montrose County of what the landfilling 
costs should be to reflect all of the above factors, that estimate should be viewed as the basis for the 
region to evaluate what is “economic” to do with regard to waste management and recycling in the region.  
That would reflect the current costs and potential liability to the City from past and present practices. 
 
Although this seems counter-intuitive to support the raising of rates, it is one of the key actions needed to 
adjust the economics locally to reflect the long-term consequences of landfilling wastes.  This would also 
encourage more waste reduction and recycling activities.  However, because only 20% of the costs of any 
solid waste or recycling system is in the disposal costs, the overall rates for the region’s solid waste 
system would not necessarily increase that dramatically.  In fact, once these price signals are adjusted 
correctly, it is quite possible there will be enough of an incentive for residents and businesses to reduce 
their total amount of materials discarded for landfilling, that their total costs for solid waste and recycling 
services may not increase that much, because they will be throwing away fewer valuable resources and 
reinvesting them in the local economy. 

4.3 Policies and Incentives 
Benefits to businesses from decreasing wasting include: 
♦ Reducing their liabilities - Every ton buried in a landfill remains the responsibility of the generator, 

under Federal Superfund law. If there are any problems with the landfills used (e.g., from leaks of gas 

                                                      
26For more info on that, get the videotape made by Paul Connett entitled Nova Scotia: Community Responsibility in Action, 2001, 30 minutes. To 
order copy, go to http://www.grrn.org/Cart/description.php?II=8&UID=20031023202806209.165.52.156 

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 27 Gary Liss & Associates 
 



Mountain Vi l lage,  Tel lur ide and San Miguel  County Zero Waste Act ion Plan 

or liquids), the attorneys involved will send a bill to everyone who ever used that facility, 
proportionate to the amount generated. 

♦ Increasing their efficiency – When sustainability audits are conducted for businesses documenting all 
the energy, materials and products they buy to create their own products, they find that nationally 
only 6% is used for producing products, and 94% is wasted.27  

♦ Improving their Green standing – This is of increasing importance to customers, employees and 
shareholders for companies.  By reducing wasting, businesses find they can increase customer and 
employee loyalty and demonstrate leadership in the Triple Bottom Line to their shareholders. 

 
Telluride’s Ordinance requires businesses to pay for recycling services, whether they use them or not.  
Although that Ordinance provides a stable revenue stream for the recycling service provider, it has not 
been successful in getting businesses to recycle. In addition, the Towns of Telluride and Mountain Village 
need to restructure their garbage rates so that reducing wastes will also reduce total waste management 
costs for residents and businesses.  This can be done by adding fees, surcharges and/or taxes to wasting 
activities, and in the approval of rates proposed by waste haulers under contract to the Towns. 
 
The Telluride and Mountain Village Ordinances should also obtain reports from all waste and recycling 
haulers in the region to set a clear baseline and for measuring progress.  Haulers already keep detailed 
records to maintain their billing system. The key is establishing a reporting system to the Towns and 
County that ensures that proprietary information is not disclosed publicly. The reporting Ordinance need 
to be clear as to what type of information is required and include an enforceable system of reporting this 
data on an equal basis for all operators in the system.  All haulers of waste and recyclables (including the 
Towns of Telluride and Mountain Village and San Miguel County) should track every pickup they do.  
The waste tracking policies should require annual reporting of the volume of materials collected from 
businesses and the total amount of waste and recyclables collected each day from residential, commercial 
and institutional generators. 
 
There are many policies and incentives that have been adopted by other communities that could be used 
to assist the region in achieving Zero Waste.  Those include economic incentives and disincentives, 
challenges to generators of waste to reduce and recycle their wastes, retail product sales and landfill bans, 
and policies that would hold retailers and/or producers physically or financially responsible for the 
products and packaging that they produce.  In communities that have achieved high rates of waste 
diversion, these tools are used incrementally to influence the marketplace, with voluntary approaches and 
partnerships tried first before more challenging policies are adopted.  However, businesses also need to 
know that the City is committed to the goal of Zero Waste before they invest substantial resources in 
changing their operations.  Therefore, the most critical policy of all is for the City to adopt its Zero Waste 
goal, and ask all stakeholders in the community to participate in working towards the goal, to achieve it, 
or darn close, by the target deadline.   
 
The following policies and programs complement each other, and provide an integrated system that is 
logically consistent and makes economic sense.  The priority for the region’s Zero Waste policies and 

                                                      
27 Source: Gil Friend, Natural Logic, email on M ay 11, 2008, gfriend@natlogic.com, www.natlogic.com 

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 28 Gary Liss & Associates 
 

mailto:gfriend@natlogic.com
Catherine Jett
Is this something we want to investigate? Carbon taxes have historically been difficult to implement or pass. Develop a positive spin to a fee?

Jonathan Greenspan
hmm i wonder who has been saying that for a long time. yes absolutly



Mountain Vi l lage,  Tel lur ide and San Miguel  County Zero Waste Act ion Plan 

incentives should be to restructure rates and fees to provide a clear price signal to reward those who waste 
less and recycle more.  The region should also work with neighboring regions to adopt policies that will 
also keep recyclable materials (e.g. C&D debris) from being landfilled.  In the event that significant 
progress is not made towards the goal of Zero Waste after adoption of the following policy options, the 
region should further consider other policy options that are available, such as more aggressive bans, 
mandates and EPR policies. 

4.3.1 Adoption of Zero Waste Policies 
1. The Town Councils of Telluride and Mountain Village and the County of San Miguel should adopt 

the Zero Waste Resolution proposed in Appendix A. 
2. To ensure that Zero Waste is included in all elements of regional planning, Zero Waste should also 

be incorporated as a guiding principle of local Town and County General Plans the next time they 
are updated. 

3. Zero Waste goals should also be adopted in zoning law and other regulations to identify appropriate 
locations for needed facilities and infrastructure. 

4.3.2 Policies and Incentives for Waste Generators 
1. The structure of the Telluride garbage and recycling contract structure needs to be revised.  It reflects 

the historical availability of services instead of current operations.  Now that there are two major 
waste haulers that offer recycling services in the area, the Towns should require businesses to 
subscribe for at least an equal amount of recycling service as garbage service, but not require 
them to pay their waste hauler for recycling service.  Require businesses to source separate all 
materials designated by the City.  Designate all materials recyclable that are collected by the 
residential curbside recycling program.  Rates for business recycling services should be offered at 
a 50% discount (at a minimum) from garbage rates.  All multi-family dwellings and lodging 
should be provided recycling services as part of their core garbage rates, without an extra 
charge.  

2. The Towns should add the collection of materials from all waste and recycling receptacles to their 
contract. The Towns should require their contractors to purchase more recycling receptacles (that 
meet Town specifications for quality signage and compatibility with waste receptacles).  Recycling 
receptacles should be located immediately adjacent to every garbage receptacle throughout the 
region. 

3. Currently local policy limits the length of waste contracts to no more than 3 years.  That policy 
should be adjusted to allow for longer term contracts that enable haulers to fully amortize costs of 
containers and collection equipment (e.g., Contracts of the local power utility are limited to 10 
years).  If that can’t be done under CO law, then the Towns should agree with contractors on a 
contract clause that passes the unamortized costs forward for the next contract to cover, regardless of 
who is selected.  That could be as simple as putting a condition in the next Request for Proposals 
(RFP) that unamortized costs of equipment should be included as part of their proposal, and that the 
title for that equipment will be transferred at the end of the contract to the new contractor. 

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 29 Gary Liss & Associates 
 

Catherine Jett
Interesting points and suggestions.

Jonathan Greenspan
yes but down the road



Mountain Vi l lage,  Tel lur ide and San Miguel  County Zero Waste Act ion Plan 

4. Ask businesses to meet a goal of Zero Waste for greater efficiency and sustainability of the local 
economy. Work to achieve Zero Waste Business Principles adopted by the GrassRoots Recycling 
Network.28   TNCC provide training in these Zero Waste Business Principles and technical 
assistance on how to achieve them.  TNCC provide other outreach, educational materials and 
recognition to businesses adopting Zero Waste (e.g., Zero Waste Decals for windows of Zero Waste 
Businesses diverting over 90% of their waste).  TNCC also provide waste audit tools and technical 
assistance to businesses (including identifying specific recycling options for individual businesses). 

5. Garbage rates for residents should include the cost of curbside recycling and organics collection and 
processing.  Where multiple levels of solid waste service are offered, there needs to be a large gap 
between single-family residential rates for these different service levels to provide the most incentive 
to recycle.  The cost for single-family residential services should be the same for each 30 gallons of 
garbage service.  Once food scraps are able to be collected from residents, an every other week 
option for rubbish service should be offered to provide a greater incentive to reduce waste.  Once 
expanded recycling and composting services are offered, at a minimum, the Towns should require 
their solid waste contractors to offer more than just 95-gallon solid waste service.  Efforts underway 
in Telluride to eliminate 65-gallon service options due to difficulty in getting containers out every 
week while there are heavy snows in winter, should only be implemented as part of an every-other-
week RUBBISH service, once food scraps composting is offered weekly (or residents document they 
are composting on-site). 

6. As more processing capabilities are developed in the area, additional materials should be added to 
the residential curbside recycling service.  Contractors should also leave promotional materials, and 
then warnings to residents to make sure they are aware of what types of materials can be recycled in 
the residential collection system.  Contractors should require residents to pay for additional garbage 
service if they repeatedly contaminate their recyclables, to make sure the overall system works as 
planned. 

7. One prospect for an environmental mitigation fee would be a transfer tax on the transfer of wood 
burning permits in the area.  If the Towns charged 10% upon the transfer of ownership of such 
permits, they could generate a significant amount of revenue. 

4.3.3 Retailer and Producer Responsibility 

1. Be a strong advocate for Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) legislation and programs 
regionally and statewide to encourage producers and retailers to takeback their products and 
packaging and reuse, recycle or compost them. Support the formation of Colorado Product 
Stewardship Council composed only of representatives of local government to clearly address this 
“unfunded mandate.”  

                                                      
28  See: http://www.grrn.org/zerowaste/business/

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 30 Gary Liss & Associates 
 

http://www.grrn.org/zerowaste/business/
Catherine Jett
Is any of this part of the Green Business program?

Jonathan Greenspan
idk its a unexplainable program



Mountain Vi l lage,  Tel lur ide and San Miguel  County Zero Waste Act ion Plan 

2. Encourage businesses and institutions to take back products & packaging sold in area that are toxic 
in their manufacture, use, or disposal, and/or are difficult to recycle in the area.29 Develop a web-
based directory of all those who will takeback products and promote that widely. 

3. Solicit industry-sponsorship of facilities to receive household hazardous wastes and difficult to 
recycle materials that are not taken back to producers or retailers in the area.30  

4. Work to obtain legal authority and regional cooperation to ban problem products and packaging or 
require businesses and institutions to take back designated products and packaging sold in region. 

4.3.4 Policies and Incentives for Recyclers 

1. Identify and involve existing businesses and nonprofits that could provide reuse, recycling and 
composting services. Build on existing private and nonprofit reuse, recycling and composting 
operations to minimize public investments. 

2. Facilitate and/or provide equipment, containers, land, building space and financing support to make 
reuse, recycling and composting more economic, including help from market partners (e.g., 
providing balers and containers). Encourage manufacturers of recycled content products to locate in 
the region. Target such manufacturers as priorities for economic development by the Towns and San 
Miguel County.   

3. Expedite permitting of reuse, recycling and composting facilities by letting project developers to go 
to the head of the line in the permitting process. 

4. The Towns and San Miguel County should adopt environmentally preferable purchasing 
specifications in public projects and as conditions of land use permits for major new commercial 
developments.  TNCC should develop specifications for the use of compost or mulch in public 
projects and the Towns and San Miguel County should require all new major developments to use 
compost or mulch in their landscaping. TNCC should also work with the Farmers Cooperative to 
develop pilot programs targeting specific crops and demonstrating enhanced yields with less water 
and chemicals from the use of locally generated compost products. 

5. Require all private haulers collecting wastes and recyclables from businesses to track the amount of 
waste and types of recyclable materials collected from each business, and make that information 
available upon Town request.  Information reported should be readily available, such as volume of 
materials collected by type (i.e. waste, type of recyclable) and tons sent for processing or disposal. 
The ICLEI Sustainability Inventory recommended “Adopt a consistent system for tracking 
landfilled, incinerated, composted, and recycled waste by material type with uniform and frequent 
reporting by all waste service providers.” 

6. Require recycling at all Construction, Demolition, Landclearing and Remodeling projects and 
require deposits be left for major projects over 10,000 square feet in gross floor area.31  Require all 

                                                      
29 The City of Ottawa Ontario developed a voluntary takeback program that publicizes businesses that voluntarily 
accept products they sell from their customers, which engenders customer loyalty and appreciation for their 
corporate responsibility. 
30 like the Center for Hard to Recycle Materials (CHaRM) in Boulder, CO. 

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 31 Gary Liss & Associates 
 



Mountain Vi l lage,  Tel lur ide and San Miguel  County Zero Waste Act ion Plan 

private developers, construction and demolition contractors, waste haulers and others handling these 
materials to report the quantities diverted and disposed to the Towns. 

4.3.5 Policy and Incentives for Waste Haulers  

1. Develop 7-year contracts with up to 3-year extension for solid waste and recycling services 
contracted by the Towns of Telluride and Mountain Village to allow for amortization of containers 
and equipment needed to provide Zero Waste services. 

2. Add fees, surcharges or taxes for waste hauling, transfer and disposal to internalize external costs 
and make it more economic for reuse, recycling and composting.  Waste Management already pays 
the Town of Telluride for billing services.  The Town could add additional fees that could be 
collected as part of that billing process.  Although the unit rates for garbage disposal will be higher, 
increased waste diversion programs will decrease the number of tons requiring such disposal.   

3. Work with Montrose County to add landfill surcharges to help fund reuse, recycling and composting 
programs recommended in this Zero Waste Action Plan and to provide greater incentives and a 
funding source for alternatives. 

4. Adopt a Zero Waste environmental mitigation fee for all solid waste haulers to pay as a percentage 
of their gross receipts to help fund reuse, recycling and composting programs recommended in this 
Zero Waste Action Plan and to provide greater incentives and a funding source for alternatives.   

5. Adopt a Zero Waste surcharge for all public and private solid waste transfer stations in San Miguel 
County to help fund reuse, recycling and composting programs recommended in this Zero Waste 
Action Plan and to provide greater incentives and a funding source for alternatives.  Encourage 
coordination between Waste Management Transfer Station and Sunrise Resource Recovery Park for 
the public to bring source separated materials to the Resource Recovery Park, and only solid waste to 
the Transfer Station.  At the San Miguel County Transfer Station, provide wider range of boxes for 
reused and recycled materials once additional processing services are developed in the region.  Then 
receive at no charge or set lower rates for clean, source separated materials at the San Miguel County 
Transfer Station. 

6. Work with Mountain Village to move the Transfer Station in core area to area in front of parking 
structure (or other more appropriate location).  Add one or more on-site composters to that Transfer 
Station to compost food scraps and food-contaminated paper from restaurants, the Convention 
Center and lodges in the Mountain Village core area. 

7. As recommended by the ICLEI Sustainability Inventory, work with Montrose County to ban the 
disposal of recyclable materials such as construction & demolition (C&D) debris at landfills, once 
recycling systems are in place in San Miguel County. 

                                                                                                                                                                           
31 The towns of Telluride and Mountain Village and San Miguel County have all recently passed, or are in the 
process of passing, Green Building Codes that will encourage and require reusing and recycling building products. 
This proposed C&D ordinance would go beyond the requirements of the Green Building Codes to also ensure that 
the necessary C&D recycling infrastructure is developed. 

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 32 Gary Liss & Associates 
 



Mountain Vi l lage,  Tel lur ide and San Miguel  County Zero Waste Act ion Plan 

8. Work with San Miguel and Montrose Counties to ban toxics, recyclables and compostables from 
transfer stations and landfills as facilities to more appropriately handle those materials are developed. 

 

4.4 Proposed Zero Waste Budget 
After review of the local solid waste, reuse and recycling system, there are a number of services that stand 
out from all the other recommendations as critical to moving forward with the Zero Waste goal in this 
region: 
 
♦ Composting - A composting facility is needed to compost all organics, including yard trimmings, 

food scraps and food-soiled paper 
♦ Resource Recovery Park - More efficient recycling operations are needed to process reusables and 

recyclables from the region, including recyclables from construction and demolition debris, ideally in 
a Resource Recovery Park design 

♦ Solid Waste System Redesign - Garbage contracts, rate structures and services provided need to be 
revised to provide incentives to all involved to move to Zero Waste (as detailed above). 

 
To move forward to implement the Zero Waste Plan, the region needs to address these issues as priorities.  
The purchase of a baler and composter for the Sunrise Resource Recovery Park would enable the 
Telluride region to dramatically address two of these key challenges.  This would reduce the region’s 
carbon footprint by not only reducing volumes of waste but by reducing the miles traveled to haul waste 
to the closest landfills in Montrose County. The Resource Recovery Park would divert an estimated 50% 
of waste currently being hauled to the Broad Canyon Landfill, located in west Montrose County (over 50 
miles away) and to the Montrose Landfill (over 75 miles away). 
 
Expanding the capability of the Sunrise Resource Recovery Park with new equipment will likely produce 
two to three new jobs and an additional three to eight jobs at full build-out of the Center. The baler will 
allow Sunrise to produce marketable sized bales of recyclables, which will be competitive in the industry, 
potentially reducing the overall cost of curbside recycling. 
 
The third challenge needs to be addressed by leadership provided by TNCC, working with staff at the 
Towns of Telluride and Mountain Village and San Miguel County.  This will require someone full-time to 
work on these and outreach and education functions identified for TNCC in this Plan.   
 
In March 2008, TNCC and Sunrise LLC jointly applied to the State of Colorado for a grant from the 
Recycling Resources Economic Opportunity Grant Program.  In May 2008, the State notified TNCC and 
Sunrise that they had been awarded the grant.  As a result, a majority of the funding to initially implement 
this Plan has already been arranged by TNCC.   
 
The only remaining funding that needs immediate attention is funding of a full-time staff for TNCC.  
Similar to the recommendations of the ICLEI Sustainability Inventory, staffing is the critical element that 
will enable all of the different pieces of this Plan to begin to be implemented in a methodical and efficient 

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 33 Gary Liss & Associates 
 



Mountain Vi l lage,  Tel lur ide and San Miguel  County Zero Waste Act ion Plan 

way.  It is recommended that the Towns of Telluride and Mountain Village and San Miguel County 
jointly fund this staffing for TNCC, and incorporate the costs of that staffing into their solid waste 
budgets or funding from the garbage system (e.g., through one or more of the fees recommended to be 
charged above). 
Properly designed avoided collection and disposal costs can become the economic engine that drives the 
system to Zero Waste.  Direct disposal cost savings alone at $50/ton32 could generate up to $450,000 each 
year for the region to offset expanded costs of Zero Waste initiatives, once those savings are factored into 
economic evaluations. The value of the materials currently disposed is over $330,000 each year33. If each 
of the materials were recovered completely and not thrown away, the benefit to the region would be the 
combination of the value and avoided disposal costs, or close to $780,000 each year.  This represents the 
budget for implementing Zero Waste in the region.   
 
If the region could implement all the programs and policies recommended in this ZWAP for less 
than $780,000 per year, it would be environmentally and economically much more sustainable.  It 
would also become a beacon of hope for all those visiting the area as bright as the first electric streetlights 
in the nation that Telluride pioneered last century. 
 
By adjusting policies as recommended, the Towns of Telluride and Mountain Village and San Miguel 
County can help everyone benefit that eliminates and recycles waste, and let those who choose to waste 
pay higher fees for those services.  The local governments can have major impacts in defining what is 
economic, through the policies adopted in Ordinances, contracts, permits, zoning, and rate structures.   
 
Once retailers and/or producers assume responsibility for their difficult to recycle products and 
packaging, the costs of reuse, recycling and/or composting will be incorporated within the purchase price 
of the products.  This essentially becomes a self-funding system, and is one of the most powerful 
opportunities that exist to move towards Zero Waste. 
 
As the Zero Waste Plan is implemented, other local business people may like to invest in new ventures 
outlined in this Plan, or may self-finance the expansion of new reuse, recycling and/or composting 
services by diversifying existing unrelated businesses.   
 
Socially responsible investors would be interested in investing in projects like the Resource Recovery 
Park and new reuse, recycling and composting ventures.  There is strong interest in investments in 
sustainable development and Zero Waste certainly qualifies as a tool to achieve a sustainable local 
economy.  Adopting Zero Waste as a goal will also distinguish the region from most other communities at 
this point in time, which will immediately attract more interest and attention for outside funders to 
support the region’s initiatives, as already demonstrated by the State funding that has been approved. 
  
The Social Venture Network (www.svn.org) is where socially conscious entrepreneurs meet, teach, 
support and create new ventures.  The Business Alliance for Local Living Economies 

                                                      
32 Based on $8/cubic yard, the current rate paid for disposal of waste from the public in Montrose. 
33 See Table 1. 

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 34 Gary Liss & Associates 
 

Catherine Jett
Which hasn't been done

Catherine Jett
Discussions with SMC, ToT, and TMV should begin now. What can be done with little or no funding, grants, etc.

Need to discuss with EAP where they are with a FT ZW coordinator.

Jonathan Greenspan
they have no money  1st step has started



Mountain Vi l lage,  Tel lur ide and San Miguel  County Zero Waste Act ion Plan 

(www.livingeconomies.org) was established by the Social Ventures Network to not only help on 
sustainable development projects, but also to develop programs that encourage the reinvestment in local 
communities.  Other socially responsible investors can be identified through a variety of sources, 
including:  
♦ Investors Circle (www.Investorscircle.net)  
♦ Green Biz Com (www. greenbiz.com)  
♦ Institute for Local Self-Reliance (www.ilsr.org)  
♦ Center for New American Dream (www.newdream.org) 
♦ Business for Social Responsibility (www.bsr.org)  
♦ CERES (www.ceres.org)  
 
There are many foundations that are particularly interested in funding Sustainable Development.  The 
Environmental Grantmakers Association (www.EGA.org) has a Sustainable Consumption and Production 
Committee that is composed of many foundations around North America that are funding such initiatives.   
 
Funding is also available from the federal and state governments, as part of environmental protection, 
pollution prevention, economic development, agriculture, forestry and climate change initiatives.   
 
TNCC’s Zero Waste Coordinator should work with the Towns of Telluride and Mountain Village, San 
Miguel County and other local stakeholders to develop and submit proposals for project funding as one of 
their priority tasks. 
 
Table 3 highlights the costs that are envisioned initially to implement this Zero Waste Action Plan.  
 
 

Table 3 - Costs to Initially Implement Zero Waste Action Plan 
 

Costs  RREOF Grant  Other Sources  
Composter/Processor  $65,000   

Baler  $80,000   

Solid Waste System Redesign 
 $45,000 (for TNCC staff, 

including benefits) 
Education/Marketing   $5,000 (for TNCC materials)  
TOTAL  $145,000  $50,000  

 

4.4.1 Zero Waste Coordinator 
To ensure the effective and efficient delivery of Zero Waste programs, the Towns of Telluride and 
Mountain Village and San Miguel County should jointly hire a Zero Waste Coordinator in TNCC.  This 
position could be created on a contract basis (one-year term).  The Zero Waste Coordinator will be 
responsible for implementation of the programs outlined in this ZWAP respectively for the region, with 
the priorities detailed in the position’s scope of work.  It is recommended that the person hired have at 
least 3 years experience in the field of waste reduction and recycling, with preference given for local 

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 35 Gary Liss & Associates 
 

Catherine Jett
All of these still exist as well as those listed above. 

We should examine cost of membership and potential benefit to our programs.

Jonathan Greenspan
everything needs to b examined



Mountain Vi l lage,  Tel lur ide and San Miguel  County Zero Waste Act ion Plan 

experience and knowledge.  The position should be filled by someone who is particularly familiar with 
sustainability initiatives, in addition to their background in waste reduction.  In addition, the successful 
candidate should be familiar with reuse, recycling and composting program implementation, as well as 
the concept of Resource Recovery Parks.  Excellence in communications will also be a key attribute for 
this important position.  Knowledge of grants and solid waste system funding would also be important. 

4.5 Implementation Schedule for Priorities 
Table 4 details a proposed implementation schedule for the priority tasks detailed in this Plan. 
 

Table 4 - Implementation Schedule for Priorities 
 

Tasks  Completion  Deliverable  Person  
 Date   Responsible  
1) Sunrise purchase baler  Sept. 1, 2008  Equipment in operation  Sunrise  
2) Sunrise purchase 
composter  

Sept. 1, 2008  Equipment in operation  Sunrise  

3) Sunrise hire staff and 
expand its Resource 
Recovery Park in Ilium 
Valley  

Sept. 1, 2008  • 
• 

Expanded center and site 
New jobs  

Sunrise  

4) Work with local 
festivals and food service 
businesses to join in new 
compost and recycling 
programs  

On-going  • 
 
 
 
• 

Number of festivals and 
events participating in 
recycling/compost program 
Festivals to report on 
amount of trash/compost 
diverted  

TNCC with 
support of local 
governments  

5) Work with local 
landscapers and garden 
centers to use compost 
and mulch materials.  

May 1, 2009  • Quantity of compost 
available to local 
landscapers, gardeners  

 
Sunrise LLC and 
TNCC  

6) Create a drop-off site 
at Resource Recovery 
Park targeted to residents 
in region without 
curbside recycling.  

Jan. 1, 2009  • 
• 
• 

Completion of drop-off site 
Drop-off site policies and 
rate structure, if necessary 
Educational materials 
regarding drop-off site use  

 
Sunrise and 
TNCC 

7) Solid Waste System 
Redesign - TNCC will 
work with local 
governments to increase 
reuse, recycling and 
composting through 
redesign of rate 
structures, incentives and 
other policies 

May 1, 2009  • 
• 
 
 
• 
  
• 

New recycling rate structure 
Incentives for 
recycling/composting 
Mandatory recycling 
requirements  
Mandatory tracking 
requirements for trash 
haulers, recyclers, and 
Festivals 

Local 
Governments, 
TNCC  

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 36 Gary Liss & Associates 
 



Mountain Vi l lage,  Tel lur ide and San Miguel  County Zero Waste Act ion Plan 

8) TNCC will create  
an education program  
for community  
residents, businesses  
and visitors  
about reuse, recycling,  
composting and Zero  
Waste programs and 
policies.  

May 1, 2009  

• 
• 

• 
• 
 
• 
 
• 
 
• 

Educational materials  
Press releases  
Information on website  
Public meetings/educational  
workshops  
Contacts with event/festival  
organizers  
Contacts with food service  
providers  
Contacts with construction  
businesses  

TNCC 

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 37 Gary Liss & Associates 
 



 

Appendix A – Model Zero Waste Resolution 

 
WHEREAS, the placement of materials in waste disposal facilities, such as landfills and incinerators, is 
costly to taxpayers, causes environmental damage, wastes natural resources, and transfers liabilities to 
future generations; and, 
 
WHEREAS, a resource management-based economy will create and sustain more productive and 
meaningful jobs; and, 
 
WHEREAS, through the application of innovative policies, programs and facilities, virtually all resources 
can be recovered; and 
 
WHEREAS, government is ultimately responsible for leading by example and establishing policies 
needed to eliminate waste, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Telluride, Mountain Village and San Miguel Zero Waste Action Plan dated July, 2008, 
details how to eliminate waste and pollution resulting from landfilling our resources. 
 
THEREFORE, be it resolved that the Council of the ___________[Town of Telluride, Town of Mountain 
Village or County of San Miguel] supports the adoption and implementation of the Zero Waste Action 
Plan, dated July, 2008 and endorses a Zero Waste or Darn Close 34Goal by 2025, with interim goals of 
50% diversion of solid waste from landfills and incinerators by 201135 and 75% diversion by 201836. 
 
 
 

                                                      
34 “Darn Close” means diverting over 90% of the region’s waste from landfills and incinerators compared to the 
base year in which the Plan was adopted. 
35 Assuming that is 1 year after the start of the next solid waste and recycling contract 
36 Assuming that is 1 year after the start of the following solid waste and recycling contract 

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 38 Gary Liss & Associates 
 



 

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 39 Gary Liss & Associates 
 

Appendix B – Waste Data from Comparable Community 

 
Mammoth Lakes is located in the Sierra Nevada Mountains in eastern California, northeast of Los 
Angeles, on the border of Nevada.  It is only four square miles and has a population of 7,093 year round 
residents (Census 2000). Mammoth Lakes is located in the Inyo National Forest and is surrounded by 
acres of forest and the Ansel Adams and John Muir Wilderness Areas. Yosemite National Park's eastern 
entrance is located just 32 miles north of town. Mammoth Lakes is part of Mono County, which is 3,018 
square miles bounded on the west by the Sierra Nevada crest.  Its mountains, lakes, streams and forests 
characterize this region. The Town of Mammoth Lakes is situated in the southwestern, mountainous 
region of the county, and many of its trails, campgrounds and roads either abut or cross the crest of the 
Sierra. Included within it is the ski resort “Mammoth Mountain Ski Area.” The Town of Mammoth Lakes 
economy is tourism-based, much like the Telluride region. It is about 325 miles north of Los Angeles, and 
about the same distance east of San Francisco. Mammoth Lakes is about 164 miles south of Reno, NV. 
There are more than 8,500 rental units in Mammoth Lakes.37

 
MAMMOTH LAKES: 1999 Materials Disposed by Residential Sector, Estimated from 
Statewide Composition Data, Sorted by Total Disposal38

The table below shows the estimated composition of waste typically disposed by single family 
and multifamily residences within California. Total tonnage for each jurisdiction is computed 
using regional per capita disposal rates obtained in the 1999 Statewide Waste Characterization 
Study. This is average data and may not reflect actual composition for a specific jurisdiction. 
Single Family Units: 2,470 Population:  5,350 
Multi/Mobile Units:  5,271 Region:  Mountain  

Regional estimate for overall residential waste in tons/resident/year: 0.25
Statewide estimate for multifamily waste in tons/unit/year: 0.46  

Last updated: Data is for 1999. 
 

Material Type 

Single 
Family
Est. % 

Single 
Family
Est. 
Tons 

Multi 
Family
Est. % 

Multi 
Family
Est. 
Tons 

Overall 
Residential 
Est. % 

Overall 
Residential 
Est. Tons 

Paper 26.3% -286 30.6% 743 27.4% 367

Uncoated Corrugated Cardboard 3.0% -32 3.1% 74 3.0% 40

Paper Bags 1.0% -11 0.9% 23 1.0% 13

                                                      
37 Source for this data on Mammoth Lakes: http://visitmammoth.com/static/index.cfm?contentID=9
38 Source for this solid waste data: http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/rescomp.asp?J=236&amp;SortBy=Disposal 

http://visitmammoth.com/static/index.cfm?contentID=9


 

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 40 Gary Liss & Associates 
 

Newspaper 5.2% -57 10.1% 245 6.5% 87

White Ledger 0.6% -7 0.5% 11 0.6% 8

Color Ledger 0.1% -1 0.1% 1 0.1% 1

Computer Paper 0.0% -0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0

Other Office Paper 1.3% -14 0.5% 13 1.1% 14

Magazines and Catalogs 2.0% -22 1.8% 45 2.0% 27

Phone Books and Directory 0.3% -3 0.8% 19 0.4% 6

Other Miscellaneous Paper 4.6% -50 5.2% 126 4.8% 64

Remainder/Composite Paper 8.2% -89 7.7% 186 8.1% 108

Glass 3.1% -34 6.5% 158 4.0% 54

Clear Glass Bottles and Containers 1.6% -17 3.2% 78 2.0% 27

Green Glass Bottles and Containers 0.5% -5 1.3% 31 0.7% 9

Brown Glass Bottles and Containers 0.7% -7 1.3% 31 0.8% 11

Other Colored Glass Bottles and 
Containers 

0.0% -0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0

Flat Glass 0.0% -0 0.1% 1 0.0% 0

Remainder/Composite Glass 0.4% -4 0.7% 16 0.4% 6

Metal 4.3% -47 5.5% 134 4.6% 62

Tin/Steel Cans 1.4% -15 1.3% 32 1.4% 18

Major Appliances 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0

Other Ferrous 1.0% -11 1.5% 35 1.1% 15

Aluminum Cans 0.4% -4 0.4% 10 0.4% 5

Other Non-Ferrous 0.3% -3 0.3% 8 0.3% 4

Remainder/Composite Metal 1.3% -14 2.0% 48 1.5% 20

Plastic 8.7% -95 9.1% 221 8.8% 118

HDPE Containers 1.0% -10 1.5% 36 1.1% 15

PETE Containers 0.6% -6 0.8% 18 0.6% 8

Miscellaneous Plastic Containers 0.8% -9 0.8% 19 0.8% 11

Film Plastic 4.2% -46 4.3% 103 4.2% 56

Durable Plastic Items 1.0% -11 0.8% 21 1.0% 13



 

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 41 Gary Liss & Associates 
 

Remainder/Composite Plastic 1.2% -13 1.0% 24 1.1% 15

Other Organic 45.7% -497 43.1% 1,045 45.0% 602

Food 17.4% -189 27.2% 660 20.0% 268

Leaves and Grass 12.7% -139 4.2% 101 10.5% 140

Prunings and Trimmings 3.3% -36 0.3% 8 2.5% 34

Branches and Stumps 0.1% -1 0.0% 0 0.1% 1

Agricultural Crop Residues 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0

Manures 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0

Textiles 2.6% -29 2.0% 48 2.4% 33

Remainder/Composite Organic 9.5% -103 9.4% 229 9.5% 127

Construction and Demolition 5.5% -60 1.5% 37 4.5% 60

Concrete 0.3% -3 0.0% 0 0.2% 3

Asphalt Paving 0.0% -0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0

Asphalt Roofing 0.0% -0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0

Lumber 1.7% -19 0.6% 15 1.4% 19

Gypsum Board 0.8% -8 0.1% 1 0.6% 8

Rock, Soil and Fines 1.7% -18 0.2% 4 1.3% 17

Remainder/Composite Construction and 
Demolition 

1.0% -11 0.7% 17 0.9% 12

Household Hazardous Waste 0.3% -3 0.4% 9 0.3% 4

Paint 0.2% -2 0.3% 6 0.2% 3

Vehicle and Equipment Fluids 0.0% -0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0

Used Oil 0.0% -0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0

Batteries 0.1% -1 0.1% 2 0.1% 1

Remainder/Composite Household 
Hazardous 

0.0% -0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0

Special Waste 0.8% -9 2.4% 58 1.2% 17

Ash 0.0% -0 0.1% 3 0.1% 1

Sewage Solids 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0

Industrial Sludge 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0



 

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 42 Gary Liss & Associates 
 

Treated Medical Waste 0.0% -0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0

Bulky Items 0.5% -5 0.2% 5 0.4% 5

Tires 0.1% -1 0.8% 19 0.3% 4

Remainder/Composite Special Waste 0.2% -2 1.3% 32 0.5% 7

Mixed Residue 5.1% -56 0.8% 20 4.0% 54

Mixed Resdue 5.1% -56 0.8% 20 4.0% 54

 
MAMMOTH LAKES: 1999 Overall Commercial Waste Stream Sorted by Percent of Waste Stream for 
MAMMOTH LAKES 39

Material Type  
Annual Disposal 
Tonnage  

Percent of Commercial 
Stream  

Food 1,518 29.8%

Newspaper 539 10.6%

Remainder/Composite Paper 471 9.2%

Uncoated Corrugated Cardboard 301 5.9%

Film Plastic 238 4.7%

Other Miscellaneous Paper 212 4.2%

Clear Glass Bottles and Containers 187 3.7%

Brown Glass Bottles and Containers 143 2.8%

Remainder/Composite Organic 139 2.7%

Leaves and Grass 126 2.5%

Textiles 98 1.9%

Remainder/Composite Plastic 84 1.6%

Magazines and Catalogs 77 1.5%

Other Ferrous 75 1.5%

Remainder/Composite Construction and 
Demolition

72 1.4%

Prunings and Trimmings 71 1.4%

Green Glass Bottles and Containers 69 1.4%

                                                      
39 Source for this solid waste data: http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp

http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=5A1&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=1B1&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=1E1&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=1A1&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=4B1&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=1D3&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=2A1&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=2B2&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=5D1&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=5B1&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=5C2&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=4D1&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=1D1&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=3A3&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=6G1&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=6G1&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=5B2&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=2B1&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp


 

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 43 Gary Liss & Associates 
 

Durable Plastic Items 62 1.2%

White Ledger 49 1.0%

HDPE Containers 46 0.9%

Lumber 44 0.9%

Phone Books and Directory 43 0.8%

Tin/Steel Cans 43 0.8%

PETE Containers 39 0.8%

Paper Bags 37 0.7%

Remainder/Composite Metal 33 0.6%

Mixed Residue 32 0.6%

Computer Paper 31 0.6%

Miscellaneous Plastic Containers 28 0.6%

Other Office Paper 27 0.5%

Remainder/Composite Glass 23 0.5%

Aluminum Cans 21 0.4%

Rock, Soil and Fines 17 0.3%

Tires 16 0.3%

Other Non-Ferrous 11 0.2%

Bulky Items 10 0.2%

Gypsum Board 10 0.2%

Manures 8 0.1%

Concrete 6 0.1%

Asphalt Paving 5 0.1%

Color Ledger 5 0.1%

Flat Glass 3 0.1%

Remainder/Composite Special Waste 2 0.0%

Batteries 1 0.0%

Other Colored Glass Bottles and Containers 1 0.0%

Major Appliances 1 0.0%

Paint 0 0.0%

http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=4C1&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=1C1&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=4A1&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=6D1&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=1D2&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=3A1&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=4A2&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=1A2&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=3C1&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=9A1&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=1C3&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=4A3&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=1C4&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=2D1&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=3B1&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=6F1&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=8F1&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=3B2&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=8E1&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=6E1&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=5C1&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=6A1&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=6B1&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=1C2&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=2C1&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=8G1&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=7D1&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=2B3&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=3A2&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=7A1&J=236


 

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 44 Gary Liss & Associates 
 

Remainder/Composite Household Hazardous 0 0.0%

Ash 0 0.0%

Vehicle and Equipment Fluids 0 0.0%

Branches and Stumps 0 0.0%

Asphalt Roofing 0 0.0%

Used Oil 0 0.0%

Sewage Solids 0 0.0%

Industrial Sludge 0 0.0%

Treated Medical Waste 0 0.0%

Agricultural Crop Residues 0 0.0%

 

http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=7E1&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=8A1&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=7B1&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=5B3&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=6C1&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=7C1&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=8B1&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=8C1&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=8D1&J=236
http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/wastechar/wcabscrn.asp?Sector=MatlDetail&SortBy=Disposal&MatlTypeD=5B4&J=236


 

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 45 Gary Liss & Associates 
 

Appendix C – Excerpts from ICLEI Sustainability Inventory 
2006 regarding Waste40

“In 2003 the [San Miguel Regional Recycling] Task Force developed guidelines for summer 
festival promoters. Several of the major festivals have adopted these guidelines and in several 
cases gone farther in this effort. The Telluride Bluegrass Festival, and the Blues and Brews 
Festival are the two largest to adopt the guidelines. With attendance numbering between 8,000 
to 12,000 daily, this has significant potential toward reducing waste. The goal is to persuade 
more festival and event organizers to adopt the guidelines. The guidelines are outlined below: 
 

Green Festival Guidelines 
Goal: To reduce the consumption of virgin materials. 
To reduce the amount of waste generated. 
To get the highest environmental return for our dollar. 
 
Festivals which wish to promote their festivals as “green” will try to adhere to the following 
guidelines. 
• Do not offer for sale or give away bottled water – provide a stand where festival goer can fill up 
their own containers. 
• Use post consumer waste to produce programs. 
• Provide bins where festival programs can be recycled. 
• Include in all programs “green” festival guidelines. 
• Any festival with a “beer booth” will use mugs with post consumer recycled content, mugs that 
are recyclable, or mugs that will be reused by the festival organizers at future events. Discarding 
of mugs will be discouraged through a required deposit. 
• Do not put festival specific information on mugs so that they can be used at future events. 
• Increase education of festivalgoer regarding waste reduction and recycling. 
• Provide recycling of glass, aluminum, and #1 and #2 plastics at all campgrounds. 
• Food booths use biodegradable serving items. 
• Publish an “approved green” list for all supplies that vendors use. 
• Provide a manned recycling area inside the festival grounds. 
• Use biodiesel whenever possible to run generators. 
• Purchase “green” power for the event.”… 
 

                                                      
40 From: 
http://www.sanmiguelcounty.org/pls/portal/docs/PAGE/SMCWEBSITE/TABNEWS/SMC%20FINAL%20SUSTAI
NABILITY%20INVENTORY.PDF 

Catherine Jett
Is this still in effect in Telluride? 

How much (if any) of this is implemented by TMV including the Sunset Concert, TSG events, and outside events?

Jonathan Greenspan
0



 

Zero Waste Action Plan, Draft 2 (8-8-08) 46 Gary Liss & Associates 
 

“RECOMMENDATIONS 
• Set a community goal to reduce solid waste generation by a certain percentage. Stimulate 
participation through a contest created by youth in schools. 
• Create a contest for re-use of disposable materials. 
• Encourage home and restaurant business vermiculture composting systems. Hold a 
community workshop teaching citizens “how-to”. Sell vermiculture kits as a fundraiser. 
• More easily accessed recycling services region-wide. 
• Consistent tracking of recycling statistics between the county and town agencies to work on 
goals. 
• With the help of local governments, continue to explore locations for a regional composting 
center; considering the possibility of two locations, one on the West end of the County and one 
closer to Telluride. 
• Improve county-wide recycling by improving participation and finding more resourceful market 
destinations for materials. 
• Research composting technology in similar climates in Europe. 
• Investigate the benefits of instituting a plastic bag ban. Although no data is directly provided on 
this issue, nationally plastic bags are a significant and growing part of the waste stream and a 
significant source of litter. 
• Adopt a consistent system for tracking landfilled, incinerated, composted, and recycled waste 
by material type with uniform and frequent reporting by all waste service providers. 
• Increase opportunities for community recycling by implementing curbside recycling where 
feasible throughout the county, increasing the number of community recycling drop-off locations 
and material types collected. 
• Develop a local recycling transfer station to collect recyclables and improve the economic 
viability of shipping them out of the community. 
• Follow Seattle’s lead and ban the inclusion of recyclables in waste sent to landfill or 
incineration. 
• Establish a goal for reducing total community and municipal solid waste sent to landfill as well 
as target diversion rates. 
• Create strict disposal guidelines and salvage/re-use requirements for commercial and 
residential construction. 
• Utilizing the San Miguel Regional Recycling Task Force, develop a newsletter to provide 
regular communication with residential and commercial recyclers on changes in regional 
recycling programs, reminders on how, when, and where to recycle, and other news worthy 
information such as special hazardous waste and electronics disposal events.” 
 
 
See full Sustainability Inventory at: http://www.telluridevision.org/DocumentView.asp?DID=14. 

http://www.telluridevision.org/DocumentView.asp?DID=14

	202006_June_Green Team Monthly Meeting Agenda
	5.12.20 Green Team Committee Meeting Minutes DRAFT.docx
	202006_Secretary_Position
	Joint Meeting
	Q2_Report
	Green Team 2020 Q2 Report
	Covid_19_Intro
	COVID-19 Work Plan
	zero-waste-action-plan
	1 Executive Summary
	2 Existing Services
	2.1 Background
	2.2 Service Opportunity Analysis
	Reuse Services 
	2.4 Recycling Services
	2.5 Composting Services 
	2.6 Solid Waste Services 
	2.7 Special Wastes and Household Hazardous Wastes

	3 Service Opportunities
	3.1 Know Your Waste and Recyclables
	3.2 Commodities Analysis

	4  Recommended Programs, Facilities and Policies
	4.1 Programs
	4.1.1 Refuse, Return and Design Out Waste
	4.1.2 Reuse and Repair
	4.1.3 Organics
	4.1.4 Paper
	4.1.5 Construction, Remodeling, Landclearing and Demolition Debris (C&D)
	4.1.6 Other Recyclables
	4.1.7 Education and Outreach

	4.2 Facilities
	4.2.1 Composting
	4.2.2 C&D Processing
	4.2.3 Reuse
	4.2.4 Resource Recovery Park
	4.2.5 Transfer Stations
	4.2.6 Landfills as a Last Resort 

	4.3 Policies and Incentives
	4.3.1 Adoption of Zero Waste Policies
	4.3.2 Policies and Incentives for Waste Generators
	4.3.3 Retailer and Producer Responsibility
	4.3.4 Policies and Incentives for Recyclers
	4.3.5 Policy and Incentives for Waste Haulers 

	4.4 Proposed Zero Waste Budget
	4.4.1 Zero Waste Coordinator

	4.5 Implementation Schedule for Priorities

	Appendix A – Model Zero Waste Resolution
	Appendix B – Waste Data from Comparable Community
	 Appendix C – Excerpts from ICLEI Sustainability Inventory 2006 regarding Waste 




